AMENDMENT TO LEASE

PROJECT NO.: 7296-001 PROJECT NO.: 14162 AMENDMENT NO.: One (1)

THIS AMENDMENT TO LEASE, made and entered into this 6th day of November, 2024, by and between County of Mendocino, General Services Agency, hereinafter called Lessor, and the State of California acting by and through the Director of the Department of General Services, hereinafter called the State.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, under lease dated January 16th, 2024, the State hires from Lessor certain premises located at 474 E Valley Street, Suite A, Willits, CA as more particularly described in said lease; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to amend said lease to: (1) <u>add additional leased</u> <u>space</u>; (2) <u>increase the monthly rental accordingly</u>; and (3) amend paragraph 13.

NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed between the parties hereto as follows:

1. Effective November 6, 2024, the description paragraph of said lease is amended to add thereto 6,340 net square feet of space on the 1st floor as outlined in green on the attached Exhibit "D", making a new total of approximately 8,640 net square feet of office space hired under said lease. Effective November 6, 2024, Exhibits "B" and "C" attached to the original lease are hereby superseded by the Exhibits "B" and "C" attached to this amendment. Effective November 6, 2024, the second (2) paragraph of Paragraph 1 of said lease shall be amended as follows:

"Approximately 8,640 net usable square feet of office space in the building located at 474 E. Valley Street, Willits, California, as outlined in red on the attached Exhibit "A" plan (the "initial space") and as outlined in green on the attached Exhibit "D" (the "additional added space" or "additional added leased premises"), including 24 nonexclusive unobstructed parking spaces contiguous to the subject building and unlimited use of the building's common facilities, said Exhibits "A" and "D" hereby being incorporated into this lease. The initial space and additional added space are subject to the Outline Specifications marked Exhibit "B", consisting of 27

pages, and the Administrative Requirements marked Exhibit "C", consisting of 13 pages, said Exhibits "B" and "C", Project No. 14162 dated September 18, 2024, hereby being incorporated into this lease. The State shall have access to and use of the additional added leased premises 24 hours per day, 7 days per week with no exceptions."

2. Effective November 6, 2024, Paragraph 4 of said lease is modified as follows (the final paragraph of Paragraph 4 is unchanged):

Rental payments shall be paid by the State, from legally available funds and subject to the California Constitution, in arrears on the last day of each month during said term as follows:

TEN THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED AND 00/100 DOLLARS (\$10,800.00) from November 6, 2024, through November 30, 2024; then

TWELVE THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED SIXTY AND 00/100 DOLLARS (\$12,960.00) from December 1, 2024, through January 31, 2025; then

THIRTEEN THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED NINETEEN AND 20/100 DOLLARS (\$13,219.20) from February 1, 2025, through January 31, 2026; then

THIRTEEN THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED EIGHTY-THREE AND 58/100 DOLLARS (\$13,483.58) from February 1, 2026, through January 31, 2027; then

THIRTEEN THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED FIFTY-THREE AND 25/100 DOLLARS (\$13,753.25) from February 1, 2027, through January 31, 2028; then

FOURTEEN THOUSAND TWENTY-EIGHT AND 32/100 DOLLARS (\$14,028.32) from February 1, 2028, through January 31, 2029; then

FOURTEEN THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED EIGHT AND 89/100 DOLLARS (\$14,308.89) from February 1, 2029, through January 31, 2030; then

FOURTEEN THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED NINETY-FIVE AND 07/100 DOLLARS (\$14,595.07) from February 1, 2030, through January 31, 2031; then

FOURTEEN THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED EIGHTY-SIX AND 97/100 DOLLARS (\$14,886.97) from February 1, 2031, through January 31, 2032; and thereafter.

3. Lessor shall have the <u>additional added leased premises</u> ready <u>for occupancy hereby</u> agrees to commence immediately and to complete on or before November 6, 2024. alterations and improvements The herein <u>additional added</u> leased premises in accordance with Exhibit "B" and "C" of said lease, and the aforesaid Exhibit "D", consisting of one sheet titled "<u>Office</u>

<u>Headquarters</u>" dated September 18, 2024, which Exhibit "D" is by this reference incorporated herein. The areas altered will be surrendered by the State at the end of the term of said lease in accordance with the provisions of said lease without any duty on the part of the State to restore such space to the condition existing prior to the commencement of <u>the State's occupancy</u>.

- 4. Occupancy of the <u>additional added</u> leased premises by the State shall not relieve Lessor in any respect from full compliance at all times with aforesaid Exhibits "B" and "D". It is further understood and agreed that any installation not in conformity with said Exhibits "B" and "D" shall be immediately corrected by the Lessor at Lessor's sole cost and expense. In the event Lessor shall, after notice in writing from the State requiring the Lessor to comply with the requirements of this paragraph in regard to a specified condition, fail, refuse or neglect to remedy such condition, State may terminate this lease without further obligation, or as to such specified condition, at its option and in addition to any other remedy the State may have, withhold rent due and bring the <u>additional</u> leased premises into conformity with said Exhibits at its own cost including State's service costs, if any, and deduct the amount thereof from the rent that may then be or thereafter become due hereunder.
- 5. No rental shall accrue under this Amendment, nor shall the State have any obligation to perform the covenants or observe the conditions herein contained, until the <u>additional</u> leased premises have been made ready for occupancy in accordance with the provisions hereof. It is specifically agreed that in the event the <u>additional</u> leased premises are not completed and ready for occupancy by the State on or before November 6, 2024, then and in that event the State may, at its option and in addition to any other remedies it may have, terminate this Amendment and be relieved of any further obligations thereunder, except that delays caused by (a) acts of the State, its agents or employees, or those claiming under agreement with or grant from the State, or by (b) the acts of God which Lessor could not reasonably have foreseen or guarded against, or by (c) any strikes, boycotts or like obstructive actions by employees or labor organizations and which are beyond control of Lessor and which cannot be reasonably overcome, or by (d) restrictive regulations by the Federal Government which are enforced in

connection with a National Emergency, shall be added to said time for completion by a fair and reasonable allowance.

No improvements have been requested by the State prior to occupancy of the additional added space, as noted on Exhibit "D" keynote section.

- 6. Lessor hereby agrees that in the event the <u>additional added</u> space is completed and ready for occupancy by the State prior to November 6, 2024, the State may if it so elects, take possession and occupy the additional space at the earliest date practical. after the date of completion. As provided on Exhibit "D", no tenant improvements have been requested by the State prior to occupancy of the additional added space. The rent payable for any such occupancy by the State prior to November 6, 2024 shall be at the rate of \$12,960.00 per month.
- 7. Pursuant to California Civil Code §1938, the Lessor states that the <u>additional added</u> leased premises:
 - Acase have not undergone an inspection by a Certified Access Specialist (CASp). A CASp can inspect the subject premises and determine whether the subject premises comply with all of the applicable construction-related accessibility standards under state law. Although state law does not require a CASp inspection of the premises, the Lessor may not prohibit the tenant from obtaining a CASp inspection of the premises for occupancy by the tenant, if requested by the tenant. The parties shall mutually agree on the arrangements for the time and manner of the CASp inspection, the payment of the fee for the CASp inspection, and the cost of making any repairs necessary to correct violations of construction-related accessibility standards within the premises.
 - □ have undergone an inspection by a Certified Access Specialist (CASp) and it was determined that the leased premises met all applicable construction-related accessibility standards pursuant to California Civil Code §55.53 et seq. Lessor shall provide a copy of the current disability access inspection certificate and any inspection report to the State within seven days of the date of execution of the lease

pursuant to subdivision (b).

- have undergone an inspection by a Certified Access Specialist (CASp) and it was determined that the leased premises did not meet all applicable construction-related accessibility standards pursuant to California Civil Code §55.53 et seq. Lessor shall provide a copy of any inspection report to the State prior to the execution of the Lease. If the report is not provided to the State at least 48 hours prior to execution of the lease, the State shall have the right to rescind the lease, based upon the information contained in the report, for 72 hours after execution of the lease.
- 8. On March 4, 2022, Governor Gavin Newsom issued Executive Order N-6-22 (EO) regarding Economic Sanctions against Russia and Russian entities and individuals. "Economic Sanctions" refers to sanctions imposed by the U.S. government in response to Russia's actions in Ukraine, as well as any sanctions imposed under state law. The EO directs state agencies to terminate contracts with, and to refrain from entering any new contracts with, individuals or entities that are determined to be a target of Economic Sanctions. Accordingly, should the State determine Contractor is a target of Economic Sanctions or is conducting prohibited transactions with sanctioned individuals or entities, that shall be grounds for termination of this agreement. The State shall provide Contractor advance written notice of such termination, allowing Contractor at least 30 calendar days to provide a written response. Termination shall be at the sole discretion of the State.
 - 9. Paragraph 13 of said lease shall be amended as follows:

Lessor, at Lessor's sole cost and expense, during the term of this lease shall furnish the following services, utilities, and supplies to the area leased by the State, and also to the "common" building areas (if any) such as lobbies, elevators, stairways, corridors, etc., which State shares with other tenants, if any:

- A. Sewer, trash disposal, and water service, including both hot and cold water to the lavatories.
- B. Elevator (if any) service.
- C. Electricity and/or gas as necessary to provide power for heating, ventilating, and air conditioning, and electrical or gas service as needed for State's operations.

D. Janitorial services sufficient to maintain the interior in a clean well-maintained condition; that is, to eliminate all visible dust, dirt, litter, grime, stains, smears, finger marks, etc., to the greatest practical degree possible, by performing at least the following:

Daily:

- (1) Empty and clean all trash containers and dispose of all trash and rubbish.
- (2) Clean and maintain in a sanitary and odor-free condition all floors, restroom, wash mirrors, basins, toilet bowls, and urinals.
- (3) Furnish and replenish all toilet room supplies (including soap, towels, seat covers, toilet tissue, and sanitary napkins). Furnish and replenish paper towel supply in all areas of the leased space.
- (4) Sweep or dust mop all hard surface floors, and carpet sweep all carpeted areas, including stairways and halls. Offices with hard surface floors in the public lobby area shall be damp-mopped daily.
- (5) Remove finger marks and smudges from all glass entrance doors.
- (6) Specifically check, and if action is needed, then:
 - a. Dust the tops of all furniture, counters, cabinets, and windowsills, (which are free of interfering objects).
 - b. Remove spots and/or spills from the carpets, floors, and stairways.

As needed, but not less frequently than

Monthly:

(1) Remove finger marks and smudges from all common area glass entrance doors.

Twice Weekly: Vacuum all carpets.

Weekly:

- (1) Damp mop all hard surface floors.
- (2) Dust all window blinds.
- (3) Treat stainless steel fountains and sinks to eliminate stains and mineral deposits.
- (4) Spot clean the walls.

Quarterly:

- (1) Strip all hard surface floors and apply a new coat of floor finish; buff as necessary to produce a uniformly shining appearance.
- (2) Treat carpets for static electricity control (if not integrated in the fabric).

Semi-annually: Wash all windows, window blinds, light fixtures, walls, and painted surfaces.

Annually:

- (1) Steam clean carpets to remove all stains and spots.
- (2) Clean window coverings.

In the event of failure by the Lessor to furnish any of the above services or supplies in a satisfactory manner, the State may furnish the same at its own cost; and, in addition to any other remedy the State may have, may deduct the amount thereof, including State's administrative costs, from the rent that may then be, or thereafter become due hereunder.

PROJECT NO. 14162

additional added leased premises for the purpose of entering the room designated in Exhibit "D" as "Electrical Phone Network 034A". The Electrical Phone Network room is jointly utilized by both the Lessor and the State, and it houses equipment belonging to both parties. Lessor requires access to the Electrical Phone Network room to inspect, maintain, alter or repair its equipment as needed. Lessor shall provide the State with no less than twenty-four (24) hours' notice prior to any planned access to the Electrical Phone Network room. In the event unplanned access is needed, as determined by the Lessor, the Lessor may require immediate access and shall provide the State with as much advance notice as reasonably practicable.

Except as amended herein, all the terms of said lease hereinabove referred to shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment to Lease has been executed by the parties hereto on the date first above written.

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]

LESSOR

STATE OF CALIFORNIA Approval Recommended COUNTY OF MENDOCINO DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES Maureen Mulheren, Chair REAL ESTATE SERVICES DIVISION ASSET MANAGEMENT BRANCH Mendocino County Board of Supervisors Date ATTEST: DARCIE ANTLE, Clerk of said Board Ву Kimberly Godwin, Real Estate Officer By _____ Deputy Real Estate Leasing and Planning Section I hereby certify that according to the provisions of Date Government Code section 25103, delivery of this document has been made. DARCIE ANTLE, Clerk of said Board Approved: By _ DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT Deputy OF GENERAL SERVICES **INSURANCE REVIEW** Risk Management Mike Engeman, Leasing Manager Real Estate Leasing and Planning Section **EXECUTIVE OFFICE/FISCAL REVIEW** Date _____ By _____ Tony Rakes, Deputy CEO Date: **COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW** APPROVED AS TO FORM: By _____ Deputy

Date:



EXHIBIT B – OUTLINE SPECIFICATIONS

	PROJECT:	Office Headquarters	PROJECT NO.:	14162
--	----------	---------------------	--------------	-------

AGENCY: California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection LEASE NO.: 7296-001

LOCATION: 474 E. Valley St. Willits, CA 95460 DATE: September 18, 2024

Table of Contents

DIVIS	ION 1 – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS	
1.1	SUMMARY	
1.2	RELATED DOCUMENTS	2
1.3	GENERAL PROVISIONS	
1.4	CONSTRUCTION AND CODE CRITERIA	
1.5	SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION AND PROJECT COMPLETION	8
1.6	INDOOR AIR QUALITY	g
1.7	HAZARDOUS MATERIALS	g
DIVIS	ION 2 – DESIGN REQUIREMENTS	12
2.1	FLOOR CONSTRUCTION AND FINISHES	
2.2	EXTERIOR WALLS	14
2.3	INTERIOR WALLS, PARTITIONS AND VESTIBULES	14
2.4	ROOF AND INSULATION	14
2.5	CEILINGS	14
2.6	DOORS	15
2.7	DOOR HARDWARE	
2.8	MILLWORK	
2.9	GYPSUM BOARD FINISH/PAINTING/WALL COVERING/SEALANTS	
2.10	BUILDING SPECIALTIES	
2.11	LANDSCAPING	
2.12	PLUMBING	
2.13	HEATING, VENTILATING AND AIR CONDITIONING	
2.14	ENERGY AND ELECTRICAL	
2.15	PARKING AND PAVING	25
DIVIS	ION 3 – SPECIAL PROVISIONS	26
DIVIS	ION 4 – TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS	27

PLANNER: Savita Sachdeva PHONE: 279.799.4093

EMAIL: Savita.Sachdeva@dgs.ca.gov

Confirmation Statement

I/we have read this Exhibit B: Outline Specifications and understand it is incorporated into, and is part of, this lease. I/we have acknowledged each and every page by placing my/our initials on this cover sheet.

Initials	

DIVISION 1 – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Exhibit B applies to Project 11506 & Project 14162. No changes have been made to Exhibit B and no tenant improvements have been requested by the Agency.

1.1 SUMMARY

The Outline Specifications describe minimum standards of quality and performance for premises occupied by the State. Construction methods or materials other than those stated herein may be acceptable if, in the opinion of the State, they provide equal quality and performance.

1.2 RELATED DOCUMENTS

- A. Lease
- B. Exhibit "A" Plans or Facility Design Program (written narrative)
- C. Exhibit "B" Division 3 Special Provisions:
 - 1. Refer to Division 3 of this specification for Special Provisions, which may amend and/or supersede Division 1 and 2 requirements.
- D. Exhibit "B" Division 4 Technical Requirements:
 - 1. Refer to Division 4 of this specification for Technical Requirements, which may amend or supersede Division 1 and 2 requirements.
- E. Exhibit "C" Administrative Requirements
 - 1. Refer to Exhibit "C" for specific requirements related to the following:
 - a) State Fire Marshal Procedures
 - b) Access Compliance Procedures (California Building Code/Americans with Disabilities Act)
 - c) Green Building Practices

1.3 GENERAL PROVISIONS

- A. Wherever reference is made to "State," "Agency," "Department," or other State of California administrative department, this shall be construed to mean the Department of General Services, Real Estate Services Division, Real Estate Leasing and Planning Section, here and after referred to as DGS.
- B. The State's intent is to achieve adequate standards of quality while avoiding unnecessary alterations, so that in all cases where an existing feature is acceptable to DGS, the Lessor's obligation is only to maintain that feature as it exists.
- C. The Lessor shall immediately address conflicts, omissions, or errors if discovered within the Exhibits, or any question regarding interpretation or clarification, by submitting in writing to the State a Request for Information (RFI). Responses from the State will not change any requirement of the lease exhibits unless so noted by the State in the response to the RFI. In case of conflicts between "Exhibit A" and Exhibit "B," the Exhibit "A" supersedes these specifications.
- D. Lessor shall patch, repair and refinish to match, all existing surfaces disturbed by the new construction. Upon completion of the project, there shall be no visual difference between the new work and the existing conditions. No changes, modifications, or substitutions shall be made to the premises as shown, except with the prior written approval of DGS.

E. LEED Certification:

- 1. When the lease contract requires LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) certification the Lessor shall refer to the following requirements:
 - a) The Lessor shall assign the DGS planner as a team member on the LEED-Online workspace.

- b) In a newly constructed building of 10,000 square feet (sf) or greater, the Lessor shall obtain Silver-level LEED certification or better from the U.S. Green Building Council (USGBC) within 12 months of project occupancy.
 - i. For requirements to achieve Silver certification, Lessor must refer to the latest version of LEED at http://www.usgbc.org. At completion of LEED documentation and receipt of final certification, the Lessor must provide DGS an electronic copy on a compact disc of all documentation submitted to USGBC. Acceptable file format is Adobe PDF saved to disc from the LEED-Online workspace and templates. In addition, a DGS or tenant representative shall have access to the LEED-Online workspace during design and through the term of the lease.
 - ii. Prior to the end of the first year of occupancy, if the Lessor fails to achieve LEED Silver certification, the State may assist the Lessor in implementing a corrective action program to achieve a LEED Silver certification and deduct its costs (including administrative costs) from the rent.
- c) In tenant improvements of 10,000 sf or greater, the Lessor shall obtain Silver-level certification or better from USGBC within 12 months of project occupancy. The DGS planner shall be consulted during the point selection process, and selection of which points to obtain shall be decided by mutual agreement. Points related to indoor air quality and lighting are a priority to the State.
 - i. For requirements to achieve certification, Lessor must refer to latest version of the LEED Reference Guide at: http://www.usgbc.org. At completion of LEED documentation and receipt of final certification, the Lessor must provide DGS an electronic copy on a compact disc of all documentation submitted to USGBC. Acceptable file format is Adobe PDF copied to disc from the LEED-Online workspace and templates. In addition, the Lessor will provide DGS viewing access to the LEED-Online workspace during design and throughout the time of the lease.
 - ii. Prior to the end of the first year of occupancy, if the Lessor fails to achieve LEED Silver certification, the State may assist the Lessor in implementing a corrective action program to achieve LEED certification and deduct its costs (including administrative costs) from the rent.
- d) When LEED certification is obtained, the Lessor shall provide two original LEED certificates to DGS.
- F. <u>Prevailing wage</u>: For those projects defined as "public works" pursuant to Labor Code §1720.2, Lessor/contractor shall comply with prevailing wage requirements and be subject to restrictions and penalties in accordance with §1770 et seq. of the Labor Code which requires prevailing wages be paid to appropriate work classifications in all bid specifications and subcontracts.
- G. <u>Project schedule</u>: Upon execution of the lease, Lessor shall issue to DGS a complete and detailed Critical Part Method (CPM) schedule for the project, which may be adjusted by mutual agreement as the project proceeds. The schedule shall include allowances for periods of time necessary for the installation of State-owned equipment and modular systems furniture.
- H. Construction costs: Prior to construction, Lessor shall provide to the State competitive bids from at least three licensed contractors/subcontractors and shall contract with the lowest acceptable bidder. The bids shall include all charges such as (but not limited to) labor, materials, tools, equipment, fees, taxes, shipping, handling, permits, inspections, and fabrication for the work defined in the lease exhibits. The bids shall also include any architectural and engineering fees. The bids shall be itemized unit cost construction estimates developed by using the Construction Specification Institute (CSI) format, titles, and numbering system. Lump sum cost estimates are not acceptable.

- I. <u>New shell condition</u>: The following items shall be provided by the Lessor and shall not be construed as tenant improvements:
 - 1. Exterior window coverings
 - 2. Capital improvements to the building's core and shell
 - 3. Building's perimeter walls and core walls with drywall finish ready for paint
 - 4. Fire sprinkler main loop including drops and heads
 - 5. Electrical service at a minimum of 5 watts per square foot
 - 6. HVAC equipment and ducting to the premises
 - 7. Code-required toilet room facilities
 - 8. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and California Building Code (CBC) compliance work to correct all deficiencies to comply with current code.
- J. <u>Previously constructed and occupied space (second-generation condition)</u>: In addition to items in paragraph I above, Lessor shall provide the following at no cost to the State:
 - 1. Code-compliant ceiling
 - 2. Code-compliant lighting systems
 - 3. Any code-required exit door and frame assemblies
- K. <u>Usable area calculation</u>: For the purpose of determining the net usable square feet, State-leased space shall be calculated as follows:
 - 1. Net usable office area includes all areas assigned to the State such as: offices, conference rooms, reception rooms, special use and supply rooms, hallways within the space, laboratories, private toilet rooms/showers, break rooms, auditoriums, cafeterias, and spaces exclusively used by the State. Net usable office area does not include stairwells, stacks/shafts, janitor closets, mechanical rooms, electrical rooms, code-required toilet rooms, code-required common areas, corridors and common area lobbies. Net usable office area is measured from the finished surface of the office side of the corridor and other permanent walls, the dominant surface (wall or glazing) of the exterior walls, and from the centerline of demising walls separating other building tenants.
- L. <u>Record documents</u>: Lessor, at Lessor's sole cost and expense, shall provide the State accurate architectural drawings of the "as-is" condition of the space to be leased, including building common areas, site/parking plan, and path of travel. The drawings shall be in an electronic format to be determined by DGS. Any required re-design work cause by discrepancies with the "as-is" drawings shall be the responsibility of the Lessor.
- M. <u>Green building practices</u>: The Lessor shall operate and maintain the leased premises in accordance with best practices to achieve energy efficiency, sustainability, improved air quality, reduced water usage and maximum recycling efforts throughout the term of the lease.
 - 1. New (state) building leases shall, where economically feasible, include sub-meters and provide energy use data into Energy Star's Portfolio Manager.
 - 2. Renegotiated state (building) leases for buildings where the State is a sole tenant shall provide energy use data into Energy Star's Portfolio Manager.
 - 3. New and renegotiated state building leases shall encourage landlords to participate in utility-sponsored energy conservation measures, using alternative financing.
 - Where economically feasible, Lessors are encouraged to implement measures of the California Green Building Standards Code (CalGreen) related to indoor environmental quality for all new or renegotiated leases.
 - 5. The State will identify and pursue opportunities to provide electric vehicle charging stations, and accommodate future charging infrastructure demand, at employee parking facilities in new and existing buildings.
 - 6. All equipment and appliances provided by Lessor shall be Energy Star-labeled if Energy Star is applicable to the equipment or appliance.

- 7. Wherever restroom fixtures are replaced during construction, the California Green Building Standards voluntary measures are to be met to achieve a further reduction in water usage for state-leased space (Tier 1, 30 percent reduction minimum). Lessor to implement annual irrigation system audits, including leak detection, and perform immediate repairs to minimize any water loss.
- 8. Lessor to implement annual irrigation system audits, including leak detection, and perform immediate repairs to minimize any water loss.
- 9. New and renegotiated state leases shall, when economically feasible, include provisions for reporting water use and installation of sub-meters where appropriate.
- N. <u>Submittals</u>: Lessor shall submit shop drawings of product data, as well as samples, to the State for review prior to construction or fabrication.
- O. <u>Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS)</u>: Prior to construction and upon request by the State, Lessor shall provide MSDS of all products or materials used in the maintenance, repair or renovation of the premises.

1.4 CONSTRUCTION AND CODE CRITERIA

- A. <u>Construction documents:</u> The Exhibit "A" Plan or the Exhibit "A" Facility Design Program (written narrative) are design development guidelines only. Lessor shall provide all required construction documents and calculations necessary to obtain a building permit from the local Building Department and to construct the improvements as indicated. The use of the Exhibit "A" Plan in lieu of construction documents is not acceptable to the State.
 - Prior to submitting construction documents to the local building department for plan check or permitting, Lessor shall submit said construction documents to DGS for review. Any DGS comments to the construction documents shall be construed as advisory only and shall not relieve the Lessor in any respect from full compliance with Exhibits "A," "B" and "C" or any other exhibits.
 - 2. Lessor's architect, engineers, consultants, and contractors shall have current and valid licenses/certifications issued by the state of California.
 - 3. During construction of building's core, shell, and/or tenant improvements, Lessor shall maintain at the project site a complete set of lease exhibits consisting of Exhibits "A," "B," "C" and any other exhibits for DGS use.
- B. <u>State Fire Marshal:</u> Concurrent with submission to the building department for permitting, Lessor shall submit a complete set of construction documents, including fire sprinkler plans and fire alarm plans, to the State Fire Marshal for review and approval and shall arrange for periodic inspections of the work (refer to Exhibit "C" for SFM GOVmotus procedures). No construction shall commence without approved plans.
- C. Access compliance: Lessor shall ensure that all new work and existing conditions comply with the requirements of California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 24, California Building Code (CBC), and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). State agencies are public entities and shall comply with Title II of the ADA. Exceptions to the code for existing buildings are not permitted. Where CBC requirements conflict or differ with ADA requirements, the most stringent requirement shall take precedence. Access compliance shall apply to exterior areas such as, but not limited to, path of travel to and from public transportation and public right-of-way; parking; passenger drop-off and loading zones; walks and sidewalks; curb ramps; ramps; and all stairs. Access compliance shall also apply to interior areas such as, but not limited to, entrances and exits; lobbies; building common areas; elevators; access lifts; doors and gates; access to and through all rooms and spaces; restrooms; signs and identification; counters; waiting and seating areas; assistive listening systems; drinking fountains; alarms; and horizontal/vertical access. See Exhibit "C" for procedures.
- D. <u>Codes and ordinances:</u> All new work and existing conditions shall comply with all current regulations, laws, and ordinances of the governmental authorities having

jurisdiction, as well as the applicable editions of the following codes, including but not limited to:

- 1. Title 8 CCR, Industrial Relations
- 2. Title 17 CCR, Public Health
- 3. Title 19 CCR, Public Safety, State Fire Marshal Regulations
- 4. Title 24 CCR, Part 1-Building Standard Administrative Code
- 5. Title 24 CCR, Part 2-CBC, Vols. 1 & 2
- 6. Title 24 CCR, Part 3-California Electrical Code (CEC)
- 7. Title 24 CCR, Part 4 California Mechanical Code (CMC)
- 8. Title 24 CCR, Part 5-California Plumbing Code (CPC)
- 9. Title 24 CCR, Part 6 CEC
- 10. Title 24 CCR, Part 9-California Fire Code (CFC)
- 11. Title 24 CCR, Part 11 California Green Building Standards Code
- 12. Title 24 CCR, Part 12-California Reference Standards Code

If fire-life safety, health hazards, and/or noncompliant code conditions are discovered either before or after occupancy, then Lessor, at Lessor's sole cost and expense, shall correct the condition.

- E. <u>Building permit:</u> Lessor shall obtain a building permit for the required construction from the local building departments, if required. In the event there is no local building department, Lessor, at Lessor's sole cost and expense, shall provide a third-party, independent Inspector of Record (IOR). The IOR shall perform periodic inspections on the work for conformance with all regulations, laws and ordinances.
- F. <u>Safety evacuation plans:</u> Lessor shall provide safety evacuation plans of the leased premises. The safety evacuation plans shall clearly delineate evacuation routes, exits, fire extinguishers, and fire alarm pull station locations. The plans shall be a minimum of 8"x10" in size, framed and under glass or clear plastic. The plans shall be installed in all assembly occupancies including conference rooms, break rooms, reception areas, and where requested by the State Fire Marshal (SFM).
- G. <u>Fire extinguishers</u>: Lessor shall provide and install fire extinguishers. Fire extinguishers shall be housed in semi-recessed cabinets and shall be located as required by CA Title 19 CCR, Public Safety. Above each fire extinguisher, per current code requirements. Lessor shall furnish and install a red triangular shaped 3-D sign with printed text "Fire Extinguisher" with an arrow pointing down. Lessor shall provide annual servicing of the fire extinguishers throughout the term of the lease.
- H. <u>Seismic performance</u>: The State will consider only those facilities that can demonstrate the ability to meet a seismic performance level as set forth in:
 - 1. 1998 edition or subsequent editions of the California Building Code, or;
 - 2. 1976 edition or subsequent editions of the Uniform Building Code **and** the building does not have any one of the enumerated characteristics or conditions listed below:
 - a) Unreinforced masonry elements, whether load-bearing or not, not including brick veneer.
 - b) Precast, pre-stressed or post-tensioned structural or architectural elements, except piles.
 - c) Flexible diaphragm (e.g., plywood) shear wall (masonry or concrete) structural system constructed pursuant to editions of the Uniform Building Code prior to the 1997 edition.
 - d) Apparent additions, alterations, or repairs to the structural system made without a building permit.
 - e) Constructed on a site with a slope with one or more stories partially below grade (taken as 50 percent or less) for a portion of their exterior.
 - f) Soft or weak story, including wood frame structures with cripple walls, or if construction is over first-story parking.

- g) Seismic retrofit of the building, whether voluntary or mandated, whether partial or complete.
- h) Repairs following an earthquake. Welded steel moment frames (WSMF) that constitute the primary seismic force-resisting system for the building, and the structure was designed to code requirements preceding those of the 1997 edition of the Uniform Building Code, and the building site has experienced an earthquake of sufficient magnitude and site peak ground motions that inspection is required when any of the conditions of Section 3.2 of Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 352 indicate an investigation of beam-column connections is warranted.
- Visible signs of distress or deterioration of structural or nonstructural systems, e.g., excessively cracked and/or spalling concrete walls or foundations, wood dry rot, etc.
- 3. Certification of the above requirements must be provided by an independent licensed structural engineer at the Lessor's expense.
- 4. Lessor shall provide and install all hardware required to brace and anchor all storage cabinets, lockers, bookcases, shelving units and similar furnishings 5'-0" or more in height whether provided by State or Lessor, in accordance with seismic design requirements of the code.
- I. Construction waste management:
 - 1. Items and materials existing in the premises, or to be removed from the premises during the demolition phase, are eligible for reuse in the construction phase of the project. The reuse of items and materials is preferable to recycling them; however, items considered for reuse shall be in refurbished condition and shall meet the quality standards set forth by the State in this Lease. The Lessor shall submit a list of items for reuse and DGS shall make the final determination for acceptance.
 - 2. Recycling construction waste is mandatory for initial space alterations and tenant improvements under the Lease.
 - 3. Recycling construction waste means providing all services necessary to furnish construction materials or wastes to organizations that will employ these materials or wastes in the production of new materials. Recycling includes required labor and equipment necessary to separate individual materials from the assemblies of which they form a part.
 - 4. The Lessor shall recycle the following items during both the demolition and construction phases of the project, subject to economic evaluation and feasibility:
 - a) Ceiling grid and tile
 - b) Light fixtures, including proper disposal of any transformers, ballasts and fluorescent light bulbs
 - c) Duct work and HVAC equipment
 - d) Wiring and electrical equipment
 - e) Aluminum and/or steel doors and frames
 - f) Hardware
 - g) Drywall
 - h) Steel studs
 - i) Carpet, carpet backing, and carpet padding
 - j) Wood
 - k) Insulation
 - I) Cardboard packaging
 - m) Pallets
 - n) Windows and glazing materials
 - o) All miscellaneous metals
 - p) All other finish and construction materials

- 5. If any waste materials encountered during the demolition or construction phase are found to contain lead, asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) (such as fluorescent lamp ballasts), or other harmful substances, they shall be handled and removed in accordance with federal and state laws and requirements concerning hazardous wastes.
- 6. In addition to providing "one-time" removal and recycling of large-scale demolition items such as carpeting or drywall, the Lessor shall provide continuous facilities for the recycling of incidental construction waste during the initial construction.
- 7. Construction materials recycling records shall be maintained by the Lessor and shall be accessible to the State. Records shall include materials recycled or landfilled; quantity; date; and identification of hazardous wastes.
- 8. Leftover paint and open paint cans shall be returned to drop-off locations, paint retailers, hardware stores, transfer stations and household hazardous waste facilities for reuse, recycling or proper management. Unopened cans of paint shall be left on site for the Lessor's or agency's use for touch-up painting.

1.5 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION AND PROJECT COMPLETION

- A. Premises shall fully conform to all lease exhibits and shall be constructed in accordance with industry standards and best practices. Lessor guarantees that all mechanical, electrical, plumbing systems and other features (including architectural finishes, paint, hardware, doors, floor covering, etc.) are of quality capable of giving satisfactory service in accordance with these specifications for the term of this lease.
- B. Substantial completion is achieved when the building core, shell, and tenant improvements as defined in these lease exhibits, including the installation of any modular systems furniture (MSF), are sufficiently completed to allow the State to lawfully and physically occupy the premises for its intended purpose. Any work required to complete any outstanding punch-list items shall not interfere with or interrupt the State's daily operation. A DGS planner will make the final determination of when substantial completion is achieved.
- C. Lessor shall operate the HVAC system to provide continuous air for a minimum of 24 hours per day for seven days prior to occupancy.
- D. State employees, agents, and invitees shall have ready access to the building and premises through the main building entry and lobby. Elevators, stairs and restrooms shall be operational.
- E. The premises shall be free of all construction debris and thoroughly cleaned. Lessor shall touch up and restore damaged or defaced painted surfaces throughout the premises subsequent to installation of State's furnishing and equipment. All painting shall be coordinated with a DGS planner.
- F. Upon project completion, Lessor shall obtain final approvals from the authorities having jurisdiction and all punch-list items shall have been completed, and reinspected by the State. Lessor shall submit to the State the following completed documents, if applicable, with all appropriate signatures.
 - 1. Building permit
 - 2. Building inspection card
 - 3. Certificate of occupancy
 - 4. Fire Department approvals
 - 5. CBC/ADA Access Compliance Fee Calculation-Exhibit "C" Form E
 - 6. Verified Report-Exhibit "C" Form G
 - 7. LEED Certification-when applicable
 - 8. Air balance report
 - 9. Operation manuals and training for equipment such as (but not limited to) intrusion alarm system, video conferencing equipment, and appliances.

1.6 INDOOR AIR QUALITY

- A. Lessor shall implement mandatory measures and relevant and feasible voluntary measures of the CalGreen, Part 11, in new buildings and when performing alterations, modifications and maintenance.
- B. Maintenance staff shall use cleaning products that are low emitting; that meet Green Seal (GS) Standard GS-37; and that use non-chemical methods where feasible.
- C. Maintenance staff shall follow the Carpet and Rug Institute's Carpet Maintenance Guidelines for Commercial Applications.
- D. Lessors shall, when feasible, use filters with a minimum efficiency reporting value (MERV) rating of no less than 13. Existing HVAC systems incapable of accommodating a 13 MERV rating shall use the highest MERV rating that their fan(s) can accommodate.
- E. All HVAC systems above 2,000 cubic feet per minute (cfm) shall be equipped with outdoor airflow measuring stations and be connected to a building energy management system, which shall be programmed to provide audible and visible alarms. For additional HVAC requirements see Division 2.

1.7 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

- A. Lessor warrants and guarantees that the premises leased to the State will be operated and maintained free of hazard from asbestos, lead, mold, and PCBs.
 - 1. The areas include:
 - a) Premises leased to the State and air plenums in the same HVAC zone.
 - b) Common public areas which state employees or their invitees would normally and/or reasonably use.
 - c) Building maintenance areas, utility spaces, and elevator shafts within or servicing areas described in items (a) and (b) above.
 - Lessor shall be responsible for all costs associated with the abatement of hazardous materials including (but not limited to) the following: cleanup of contaminated Stateleased space, State-owned equipment, furnishings and materials and all required monitoring reports. Copies of all air monitoring reports shall be furnished to the State.
 - 3. The State-leased space shall be maintained at or below the permissible exposure levels for all substances regulated under Title 8 California Code of Regulations Section 5155. If it is determined by the State that the tenant must be relocated to prevent exposure above the permissible level, the Lessor shall provide comparable accommodating space at no cost to the State. In addition, the Lessor shall pay for all costs associated with this move including (but not limited) to: administrative, furniture, communications contracts and equipment costs.
 - 4. In the event that after written notice is provided by the State, the Lessor fails, refuses, or neglects to diligently pursue abatement of any hazardous material, the State may affect such abatement. The State may deduct all reasonable costs of such abatement of hazardous materials from the rent.
 - 5. The Lessor shall indemnify, defend, and hold the state of California, its officers, and employees harmless from and against any and all losses, damages, judgments, expenses (including court costs and reasonable attorney fees), or claims whatsoever, arising out of, or in any way connected with or related to, directly or indirectly, the presence of hazardous materials within the State-leased space or the building in which the leased premises are located.

B. Asbestos:

1. For buildings constructed prior to January 1, 1979, the Lessor shall provide the State with a current written asbestos survey of the areas listed in Section 1.6. A.1. An independent California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (CalOSHA) Certified Asbestos Consultant shall complete the survey.

- 2. For buildings constructed after December 31,1978, and prior to any tenant improvements or major repairs, the Lessor and Lessor's construction contractor are responsible for sampling any suspected asbestos-containing material (ACM) to be disturbed during the project. Where ACM is suspected to be present, the Lessor shall provide the State with a written asbestos survey covering all materials to be disturbed during the project; the survey shall be performed by an independent Lessor-contracted consultant.
- 3. Where ACM or suspect ACM has been identified by survey, the Lessor shall provide the State with a copy of a written Operations and Maintenance (O&M) plan. This O&M plan must be effective in minimizing damage or disturbance of any ACM or suspect ACM and provide for quick repairs of the same.
- 4. If damaged ACM or suspect ACM is found, or the physical condition of ACM indicates possible fiber release, a response action in accordance with the approved O&M plan shall be conducted. The approved O&M plan shall include provisions for air sampling by an independent Certified Industrial Hygienist during and at the completion of all response actions. Analysis of air samples shall be conducted utilizing Transmission Electron Microscopy (TEM). The standard for reoccupancy of an affected area shall be concentrations at or below 70 asbestos structures per millimeter squared (structures/mm²).
- 5. Lessor shall perform asbestos notification as required by Chapter 10.4 of the Health and Safety Code. Any abatement work shall be performed by a licensed contractor with asbestos certification (ASB). The State reserves the right to establish consultant oversight of any asbestos-related work program at its expense.
- 6. In addition to any other remedies it may have, in the event the Lessor fails to diligently pursue abatement of hazard from ACM, as required under the provisions of this lease, the State may, by notice in writing, terminate this lease. Lessor shall be liable to the State for all expenses, losses and damages reasonably incurred by the State as a result of such termination, including (but not limited to) additional rental necessary to pay for an available, similar replacement facility. This rental shall extend over the period of what would have been the remaining balance of the lease term plus any option periods, costs or any necessary alterations to the replacement facility, administrative costs, and costs of moving furniture, data processing, and telephone equipment.

C. Lead material:

- Any material suspected of containing lead within the areas listed in Paragraph "A" shall be tested and identified through sampling by an independent California Department of Public Health (CDPH) Certified Lead-Related Construction Inspector/Assessor.
- 2. In the event lead removal is required, Lessor shall provide an independent CDPH Certified Lead-Related Construction Inspector/Assessor to inspect the quality of work for compliance with applicable regulations; perform air monitoring; perform a final clearance visual inspection; conduct wet wipe sampling/lab analysis; and ensure proper handling and/or disposal of hazardous waste.

D. Mold:

- 1. The Lessor shall operate and maintain the leased premises to be free of hazard from mold.
- 2. If mold is detected within the State-leased space, an immediate response action in accordance with industry standard practices shall be undertaken by the Lessor. The Lessor shall contract for the services of an independent CalOSHA/Certified Industrial Hygienist to determine the appropriate response action.
- 3. Lessor shall be responsible for all costs associated with any hazard response action.
- E. Underground Storage Tanks (UST):

1. Lessor shall comply with the requirements of the California Health and Safety Code, Section 25280-25299.8 (Underground Storage Tanks).

DIVISION 2 – DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

Exhibit B applies to Project 11506 & Project 14162. No changes have been made to Exhibit B and no tenant improvements have been requested by the Agency.

For items that are shown with strikethrough (strikethrough) please refer to Division 3 – Special Provisions for amendments to the requirements.

2.1 FLOOR CONSTRUCTION AND FINISHES

A. Concrete floor:

- 1. Concrete floor construction is the standard for comparison. Floor of another material may be acceptable provided its use does not produce or transmit sound or vibration to a greater degree than a 4" reinforced concrete slab.
 - a) Lessor shall provide certification that the concrete slab is level and does not exceed a variance of ¼ inch in 10 feet from a true flat plane.
 - b) Where slab is out of compliance, leveling shall be achieved using a highstrength concrete topping compound, i.e., Mapei, Ardex, Inc., K-500, Hacker Ind., Firm Fill 4010, Maxxon, Level-Right, or approved equal material.
- 2. Concrete floors in janitor closets, mechanical, and/or electrical utility rooms shall be cleaned and treated with epoxy coating. Office areas throughout shall have carpet or other floor covering with 4" high cove base, unless noted otherwise. Floors in toilet rooms shall be of nonabsorbent material impervious to moisture, such as ceramic tile or approved equal, with minimum 4" high cove base. Floor covering shall extend under counters and cabinets. Colors and patterns shall be as selected or approved by State.
- 3. Prior to the installation of any finish floor material, Lessor shall perform a quantitative moisture test on the concrete slab. The test shall be administered in accordance with the flooring material manufacturer's written guidelines or recommendations. In the event the moisture content exceeds the flooring material manufacturer's recommendation, the Lessor, at Lessor's sole cost and expense, shall provide and install a waterproofing sealer as recommended by the flooring material manufacturer.
- 4. Exposed concrete floors are not acceptable in toilet rooms, locker rooms or shower rooms.

B. Carpet flooring – General:

- 1. Lessor shall provide and install carpet and cove base where shown in Exhibit "A." All carpet shall comply with American National Standards Institute (ANSI) NSF 140-2007 Platinum level.
 - a) When requested by DGS, Lessor shall submit carpet samples to DGS for selection. The samples shall be from a minimum of three different manufacturers and consist of a variety of patterns, textures, colors and styles.
 - b) Carpet shall have random graphic pattern loop non-generic branded, 6 or 6.6 nylon face yarn with inherent static control.
 - c) Broadloom loop pile carpet shall have inherent static control capability to assure a maximum 3.5 KV rating at 20 percent relative humidity and 70° F as measured by American Association of Textile Chemists and Colorists (AATCC) Test Method 134.
 - d) Carpet shall be installed according to manufacturer's guidelines. The carpet shall be securely attached; have a firm cushion, pad or backing; and be of level loop, textured loop, level-cut pile, or level-cut/uncut pile texture. The maximum pile height shall be ½ inch.

- e) The carpet backing shall have a minimum 10-year guarantee against tuft pull and zippering, and surface wear shall not be more than 10 percent within 10 years.
- f) Carpet adhesives shall be non-toxic, low-odor, solvent-free, and shall not produce toxic vapors or contain carcinogenic materials.
- g) Carpet shall meet federal, state and local flammability standards.
- h) Carpet shall be installed in accordance with the Carpet and Rug Institute (CRI) Carpet Installation Standard. The installation shall be guaranteed against bubbling, wrinkling, stretching/shrinking, opening seams, or other evidence of poor materials and workmanship for a period of two years following installation. This guarantee shall cover normal wear and tear and note deficiencies occurring as a result of damage, negligence and/or alterations. The materials shall be guaranteed against wear, delamination, tuft bind and be lightfast for a period of 10 years. The material shall remain colorfast as a result of atmospheric contaminants for a period of five years after installation.
- i) Lessor shall maintain the carpet according to manufacturer's guidelines.
- C. Broadloom carpet requirements:
 - 1. Density: 6000 minimum; heavy commercial use.
 - 2. Density: 36x finished pile weight divided by pile height.
 - 3. Tuft bind for broadloom shall be minimum 6 lbs., ASTM D 1335-98, Standard Test Method for Tuft Bind (edge ravel) of Pile Yarn Floor Coverings, tested wet or dry. Warranty edge ravel for 10 years.
 - 4. Face yarn weight: Minimum 22 oz./sq. yd.
 - Minimum of 10 lbs. backing delamination test, ASTM D 3936-05 Standard Test
 Method for Resistance to Delamination of the Secondary Backing of Pile Yarn Floor
 Covering.
 - 6. Minimum rating of 7 anti-stain tests; AATCC Test Method 175-2008 Stain Resistance Pile Floor Coverings.
 - 7. Lessor shall provide 2 percent of product overage, including accent carpet, up to a maximum of 100 sq. yards from the same dye lot for future repairs.
- D. Carpet tile requirements:
 - 1. Density: 5000 minimum; heavy commercial use.
 - Tuft bind strength shall be minimum 5 lbs., ASTM D 1335-98: Standard Test Method for Tuft Bind (edge ravel) of Pile Yarn Floor Coverings, tested wet or dry. Warranty edge ravel for 10 years.
 - a) Face yarn weight: Minimum 16 oz./sq. yd.
 - b) Minimum of 10 lbs. backing delamination test, per ASTM D 3936-05 Standard Test Method for Resistance to Delamination of the Secondary Backing of Pile Yarn Floor Covering.
 - c) Minimum rating of 7 anti-stain tests, per AATCC Test Method 175-2008 Stain Resistance Pile Floor Coverings.
 - d) Lessor shall provide 2 percent of product overage, including accent carpet, up to a maximum of 100 sq. yards from the same dye lot for future repairs.
- E. Ceramic tile flooring requirements:
 - 1. Ceramic tile flooring shall have a coefficient of friction of at least 0.6 per ASTM C 1028 (0.8 percent on sloped surfaces steeper than 6 percent). Unless otherwise noted by DGS, provide slip-resistant floor tile with matching wall tile base, and include all inner and outer corner and trim pieces. All adhesives, mastics, and grouts shall be non-toxic and low in volatile organic compound (VOC) emissions and shall be as recommended by the ceramic tile manufacturer. All grout shall be sealed and maintained according to manufacturer's guidelines.
- F. Resilient flooring requirements:

- 1. Resilient flooring shall meet ASTM F 1066, FS SS-T-312B, Type IV, Composition 1, Class 2, 12" x 12" having uniform thickness of 1/8" with square true edges of manufacturer's standard color and pattern as selected. Product shall comply with all regulations controlling the use of VOCs. Provide one carton (40 pieces) of additional matching floor tile.
- Resilient flooring shall have a coefficient of friction of at least 0.6 per ASTM D 2047.
 It shall be installed in strict accordance with manufacturer's approved installation instructions using the appropriate recommended 100 percent solvent-free adhesive.

G. Rubber base requirements:

1. Lessor shall provide and install cove wall base at all carpet and resilient floor finish areas. Wall base shall be extruded rubber cove, 1/8" thick x 4" high complying with ASTM F-1861. The color shall be selected by DGS.

2.2 EXTERIOR WALLS

- A. Exterior walls, including door and window assemblies, shall be weatherproof. All cracks that allow outside air to penetrate the building's envelope shall be sealed.
- B. Exterior walls shall be insulated to comply with CCR Title 24.

2.3 INTERIOR WALLS, PARTITIONS AND VESTIBULES

- A. Walls and partitions shall be ceiling height unless otherwise noted in Exhibit "A" or Division 3 'Special Provisions.' Subject to code limitations, those indicated as new partitions may be wood or metal stud with plaster or gypsum wallboard or other construction of equal sound transmission coefficient (STC). Provide a minimum STC 32. Demising walls separating State premises and other building tenants shall extend to the underside of structure above and shall be constructed to achieve an STC 50.
- B. Walls of equipment rooms, toilet rooms, conference rooms, hearing rooms, quiet rooms, training rooms, interview rooms, employee break rooms, and where otherwise indicated in Exhibit "A," shall be insulated to prevent transmission of sound or vibration. Wall construction shall achieve a minimum rating of STC 50 as set forth in ASTM E 90.
- C. Furnish and install insulation batts above the finished ceiling on each side of the wall for the entire length of the wall.
- D. Moisture-resistant wainscot of wall tile or other DGS-approved material shall be installed to all plumbing fixture walls and adjacent walls in the toilet rooms. Wall tile shall be a minimum of 4"x 4" glazed ceramic tile unless otherwise noted in Exhibit A. Wainscot shall extend a minimum of 4'-0" above finished floor, unless noted otherwise.
- E. Glazed openings in office partitions shall be set in metal frame assemblies and comply with Consumer Product Safety Commission impact-safety standards.

2.4 ROOF AND INSULATION

- A. Roof shall be weather tight and provided with a suitable drainage system that will effectively dispose of roof water without interfering with the use of premises.
- B. Roof shall be insulated such that the heat transfer values from roof to occupied areas comply with CCR Title 24.

2.5 CEILINGS

- A. Ceilings of office areas including reception, private offices, open office areas, corridors, and office storage areas shall have suspended "T" bar systems with acoustical lay-in tiles or other approved material with equivalent acoustical qualities. Ceiling heights shall be a minimum of 9'-0" and a maximum of 12'-0" unless otherwise approved by DGS.
- B. Where existing "T" bar system with acoustical lay-in tiles are reused, Lessor shall modify ceiling system as necessary to comply with all seismic safety regulations. "T" bar system and ceiling tiles shall be free of all dirt, dust, stains, and damage. Where

- replacement tiles are installed, all tiles shall be arranged as necessary to provide a uniform appearance in each enclosed space.
- C. Ceilings shall be a flat plane in each room and shall be suspended and finished as follows unless an alternate equivalent is preapproved by the State:
 - 1. Restrooms and evidence board rooms: Plastered or spackled and taped gypsum board.
 - 2. Offices, conference rooms and open office: Mineral and acoustical tile or lay-in panels with textured or patterned surface and regular edges or an equivalent preapproved by the State. Tiles or panels shall contain a minimum of 30 percent recycled content.

2.6 DOORS

- A. All interior doors shall be solid-core flush wood doors with wood veneer suitable for stain or paint finish. Doors shall be a minimum dimension of 3'-0" x 6'-8" x 1-3/4".
- B. Doors shall be manufactured per Window & Door Manufacturers Association (WDMA) and Architectural Woodwork Standards (AWS).
- C. The formaldehyde emission level of all new doors shall not exceed 20 parts per million.
- D. Glass vision panels in interior doors and sidelights shall be minimum 1/4" clear tempered glass set in metal frame assemblies. Fire protective glass assemblies shall be provided where required by code.
- E. Fire-rated door and frame assemblies shall be installed where noted in Exhibit "A" or as required by code. Doors and frames shall bear Underwriters Laboratory (UL) label for required fire-resistive rating.
- F. Doors separating conditioned and non-conditioned space shall have weather stripping to effectively limit air infiltration. Adhesive foam-type or felt weather stripping is not acceptable.
- G. Where indicated on plans, or required by code, a roll-down steel fire shutter bearing a UL 3/4 hour, "C" label shall be provided. Emergency operation shall be by smoke detectors with adjustable time delay, initially set at 45 seconds.
- H. Where existing door and frame assemblies are reused, Lessor shall patch, repair, adjust, and refinish the assemblies to provide a new-looking appearance.

2.7 DOOR HARDWARE

- A. Lessor shall provide and install door hardware and related items including keying of locksets necessary for a complete installation and operation of doors.
- B. All hardware shall be CBC/ADA access compliant, heavy-duty commercial quality equal to Schlage, Von Duprin or Falcon.
- C. Door hardware shall include (but is not limited to): cylindrical lock and latch sets, door butt hinges, doorstops, push plates, door pulls, closers, and exit devices.
- D. Hinges for exterior outswing doors shall have non-removable pins.
- E. Doorstops shall be provided and installed wherever an opened door or any item of hardware thereon would strike a wall, column, equipment, or other parts of building construction. Doorstops shall be floor-mounted.
- F. Lessor shall key all keyed locksets as directed by tenant agency and shall provide a minimum of three keys for each lock.
- G. Metal thresholds and weather strips shall be provided to all exterior doors. Thresholds shall have non-slip abrasive finish.
- H. Adjustable door closers shall be provided on entrance doors, toilet room doors, vestibule doors, doors with access-control hardware, and where shown on plans, and required by code.
- I. Metal kick plates that are 10" high shall be provided and installed on the push side of all doors equipped with door closers.

2.8 MILLWORK

- A. Lessor shall provide and install new millwork as shown and where indicated in Exhibit "A"
- B. All millwork shall be manufactured and installed in accordance with the AWS' latest edition for custom grades. Prior to fabrication, Lessor shall submit to DGS shop drawings of all new millwork.
- C. Cabinets shall be of sizes and types as indicated in the Exhibit "A." Base cabinets shall have one row of drawers and one adjustable shelf below with concealed hinged doors, unless noted otherwise. Lessor shall provide a 4" toe space at base cabinets. Upper cabinets shall have two rows of adjustable shelves and hinged doors, unless noted otherwise.
- D. Counter tops shall be finished with plastic laminate or solid surface material. Counter tops shall be self-edged unless otherwise noted. Counter tops with sinks shall be fully formed and have a no-drip edge, and coved splash joint. All counter tops shall have a back and side splash unless otherwise noted. Sinks shall have a sanitary metal rim or be a self-rim stainless steel sink. Other materials may be submitted to the State for approval.
- E. Shelving units shall be a minimum of 3/4" thick white melamine, per AWS. Cover exposed edges with plastic laminate or hardwood edge bound.
- F. Face of millwork shall be high-pressure decorative plastic laminate. NEMA LD-3 grades as required by AWS.
- G. Lessor shall provide cabinet hardware such as (but not limited to): concealed hinges, pulls, catches, shelf rests, standards and brackets, and drawer slides. All hardware shall comply with ANSI A 156.9-01 and Builders Hardware Manufacturers Association.
- H. All millwork shall be installed in accordance with all seismic safety requirements of the code.
- Base cabinets containing sinks shall be CBC/ADA access compliant. Unless otherwise noted, Lessor shall provide cabinet doors with attached toe kicks with rubber base to conceal clear space below.

2.9 GYPSUM BOARD FINISH/PAINTING/WALL COVERING/SEALANTS

- A. Gypsum board finish shall be a smooth, blemish-free, level 4 finish and free of tool marks and ridges. Heavily textured wall surfaces are not acceptable.
- B. Water-based paints shall not be formulated with aromatic hydrocarbons, formaldehyde, halogenated solvents, mercury or mercury compounds, or tinted with pigments of lead, cadmium, chromium VI, antimony and their oxides. All architectural paints and coatings shall comply with VOC limits of the California Green Standards Code unless more stringent local limits apply.
- C. All wall texture and paint colors shall be selected and/or approved by DGS.
- D. New surfaces:
 - 1. New partitions without factory finish shall be painted with one coat of primer/sealer and two finish coats of premium quality latex, eggshell paint. Flat paint is not acceptable.
 - 2. Break rooms, toilet rooms, and janitorial closets shall be painted with semi-gloss enamel paint.
 - 3. Paint-grade doors and trim shall be latex semi-gloss enamel paint.
 - 4. Stained or natural finish wood shall be finished with sealer and two coats lacquer. They shall be finished using non-toxic, water-based urethanes or similar environmentally sensitive products.
- E. Existing surfaces:
 - 1. Interior walls and plaster or gypsum board ceilings shall be finished in latex eggshell paint.
 - 2. Heavy textured walls shall be sanded smooth and prepared for a new paint finish.

- 3. Existing wall coverings shall be removed (unless otherwise noted), wall surface shall be prepared, and receive a new paint finish.
- 4. Doors and frames shall be refinished to provide a new-looking appearance.
- 5. HVAC registers and grilles shall be in a newly painted condition. In the event the registers are in poor condition; registers shall be replaced by the Lessor.
- 6. Stained or natural finished wood shall be refinished with sealer and lacquer.
- 7. Metal toilet stall partitions shall be repainted using electrostatic paint process.
- F. Where alteration work occurs, new painted surfaces shall extend to the natural break.
- G. Where wall covering is specified, the product shall be "breathable" to prevent mold and bacteria development. All adhesives (including but not limited to adhesives for carpet, carpet tile, plastic laminate, wall coverings, adhesives for wood, or sealants) shall meet the VOC content limit specified in CalGreen Sections 4.504.2.1-4.504.2.4 and 5.504.4.1-5.504.4.3.
- H. Interior sealants shall not contain mercury, butyl rubber, neoprene, styrene butadiene rubber (SBR), nitride, aromatic solvents (organic solvent with a benzene ring in its molecular structure), fibrous talc or asbestos, formaldehyde, halogenated solvents, lead, cadmium, hexavalent chromium, or their components.

2.10 BUILDING SPECIALTIES

- A. Toilet room partitions and accessories: In addition to any code-required toilet room accessories, Lessor shall furnish, install, maintain, and replenish where appropriate, the following accessories:
 - 1. Coin-operated sanitary napkin dispenser (one per women's toilet room)
 - 2. Folding utility shelf and coat hook (one per toilet stall)
 - 3. Mirror with metal frame assembly (one per lavatory, two or more lavatories may have one continuous mirror)
 - 4. Paper towel dispensers (one per every two lavatories)
 - 5. Sanitary napkin waste receptacle (one per women's toilet stall)
 - 6. Soap dispensers (one per lavatory)
 - 7. Toilet paper dispenser, continuous toilet-paper flow, capable of holding two rolls (one per toilet stall)
 - 8. Toilet seat-cover dispenser (one per toilet stall)
 - 9. Trash receptacles (one per toilet room)
- B. All accessories shall be constructed of stainless steel and exposed surfaces shall have satin finish.
- C. Toilet room partitions:
 - 1. New toilet stall partitions shall match building standard.
 - 2. Lessor shall furnish and install privacy screens at all urinal locations screens shall match toilet partitions.
- D. Paper towel and soap dispensers:
 - Where sinks and lavatories are provided for State's exclusive use, Lessor shall provide, install, and replenish paper towel and soap dispensers. Dispensers shall be constructed of stainless steel and exposed surfaces shall have satin finish. Locations shall include but are not limited to: break rooms, coffee bars, labs, work area, etc.
- E. Window treatment:
 - Lessor shall provide and install horizontal or vertical window blinds or other DGSapproved device for privacy to all windows and interior glazed openings, including interior door sidelights.
 - At sun-exposed areas, Lessor shall provide and install solar screens, reflective glass coatings, reflective glass panes, or other State- and Lessor-approved device for sun control.
- F. Knox Box:

1. Where State occupies an entire building, Lessor shall furnish and install a Knox Box near building entrance as directed by Fire Department.

G. Signage:

- 1. Lessor shall provide and install room identification signage for all rooms.
- 2. Lessor shall verify signage content, room number designation, and submit mockups of signage types to DGS for review and approval prior to fabrication.
- 3. All signage located within the State's premises shall be tactile identification signage with raised letters and raised numbers between 5/8" and 2" high with a width-to-height ratio of between 3:5 and 1:1 and a stroke width-to-height ratio between 1:5 and 1:10. Letters shall be raised 1/32" above the background, sans-serif uppercase characters. Signage shall be installed per current code. Signage for all private offices shall have a clear 3"-4" high x 6" wide x 1/16" thick non-glare lens slide-out.
 - a) Characters and background of signage shall be eggshell, matte, or other nonglare finish.
 - b) Characters shall contrast with their background.
- 4. Grade 2 California braille dots shall be raised 1/40" above the background. Braille shall be 1/10th inch on center within each cell and 2/10th inch between cells. Braille dots shall be domed or rounded.
- 5. In addition to room identification signage, Lessor shall provide and install tactile exit signs and tactile exit route signs.
- 6. Where signs are mounted on glass, such as but not limited to sidelights, furnish and install a blank of equal material, width, height, and background color to the opposite side of said glass.
- 7. State of California identification:
 - a) On or near the suite entrance door, the words "STATE OF CALIFORNIA" shall be installed, and shall indicate the name of the State tenant/department/agency and suite numbers and shall include braille and tactile text and numbering.
 - b) Signage shall be building standard and subject to approval by the State. Painted or pressure-sensitive vinyl letters are not acceptable. Provide agency identification in the building directory, where available.
- 8. Lessor shall provide "maximum occupancy" signage on the wall above or near the entry door for all conference, meeting, lunch, auditorium and assembly rooms.
- 9. Exterior signs (applicable only if building is totally occupied by the State): Lessor shall provide and install exterior signs. Letters shall be of cast aluminum alloy, bronze, black anodized finish or dimensional plastic. Submit samples to DGS for approval. The words "STATE OF CALIFORNIA" and the name of the occupying department, and street address shall be in scale with the building elevation.
 - a) Lessor shall be solely responsible for any additional permits and fees.

H. Assistive listening devices:

- 1. Lessor shall provide an assistive listening device system for all meeting, conference, quiet, assembly, and gathering rooms. The system shall comply with all accessibility requirements.
 - a) Occupant load less than 50:
 - One portable system per floor can be shared between rooms with occupant loads less than 50. The system shall be designed to accommodate the largest room size that is being shared. The portable, wireless FM-based system shall include high output acoustic headset(s) such as the Centrum Motiva PFM 360 (or current model) with disposable ear plugs, neck-loop(s), conference microphones and a lockable charger/accessory carry case large enough to hold all equipment. The system shall be hearing aid compatible. Lessor shall provide signage at reception area indicating that the device is available.
 - b) Occupant load of 50 or more: Rooms with more than a 50-person occupant load and fixed seating must have

a fixed assistive listing device system for 4 percent of the total number of seats in these rooms, but not less than two seats. Lessor shall provide signage inside each room and in the common hallway and/or corridor indicating that the device is available.

- I. Modular systems furniture (MSF):
 - The State may elect to furnish and install MSF in lieu of traditional office furniture.
 MSF may be comprised of any combination of freestanding partition panels, panel-supported work surfaces, files, components, and access raceways.
 - 2. Where the State elects to install MSF as described above, Lessor, at Lessor's sole cost and expense, shall perform the following:
 - a) Obtain any required permits from the local jurisdiction.
 - b) Provide electrical engineering and installation of all wiring systems and components as necessary or required from the building's electrical system to the MSF for a complete and fully operational system.
 - c) Provide a minimum of four 20-amp circuits to each base feed and/or power pole feed. Each base feed or power pole shall serve a maximum of four workstations.
 - d) Coordinate electrical junction box locations with State-furnished MSF plans. See Division 3 Special Provisions for MSF wiring diagram.
 - e) Install voice and data communication cabling from the data communication closet to the final point of termination at the MSF panel.
 - f) Cut and assemble the supplied power pole to the appropriate length, insert pole into top trim of panel, align the pole true and plumb, seismically brace pole, cutting the correct size hole in the ceiling tile, routing the electrical and data conduit through the pole, and installing the ceiling escutcheon plate to complete the pole installation.
 - g) Coordinate the installation of new wall-mounted equipment to prevent interference with the MSF, such as electrical panels, lighting control switching, thermostats, and fire extinguisher cabinets.
 - h) Relocate any existing wall-mounted equipment as required to accommodate MSF
 - i) State or its representative shall provide MSF layout drawing(s) to Lessor for use in the preparation of construction documents unless otherwise noted.
 - j) State shall complete all procurement procedures for purchase of MSF unless otherwise noted.
 - k) In the event that the Lessor fails to complete the required construction, improvements, and/or alterations prior to the scheduled MSF delivery date, Lessor, at Lessor's sole cost and expense, shall be responsible for all additional shipping, handling, and storage fees, including any "overtime" labor costs.
 - Where the State utilizes MSF, and the existing floor coverings are to be replaced as defined in the lease exhibits, Lessor, at Lessor's sole cost and expense, shall lift the existing MSF and disconnect as necessary all power, voice, and data cabling. The MSF shall be lifted using an MSF lift system as recommended by the MSF manufacturer. Upon completion of the installation of floor coverings, Lessor shall reconnect all power, voice, and data cabling and lower the MSF into place. Lessor shall realign and adjust the MSF to its original location and condition. Prior to lifting or moving the MSF, Lessor shall perform an inspection with State representatives and contractor to observe and document the condition of the MSF. In the event the MSF is damaged during the performance of any tenant improvement work, Lessor, at Lessor's sole cost and expense, shall repair and/or replace the MSF with approved equal product. MSF manufacturer's authorized installers shall perform all repair work.
- J. Flagpoles:

- 1. Where State is the sole or major tenant of the building (occupying more than 50 percent of the available space), the United States flag and California state flag shall be prominently displayed upon or in front of the building or grounds in conformance with all flag displaying protocols and etiquettes.
 - a) Lessor shall furnish and install the flagpole and flags.
 - b) Freestanding flagpole shall extend 30' above grade.
 - c) Flagpoles mounted to building shall extend 14' above building parapet.
 - d) Flagpoles shall be equipped with lockable halyard box.
 - e) Flagpole and halyard shall be CBC/ADA access compliant.
 - f) Flags shall be in scale with building and flagpole.
 - g) Lessor shall provide automatic lighting for nighttime illumination.

2.11 LANDSCAPING

Where State is the sole tenant of the building:

- A. Landscape management practices shall prevent pollution by:
 - 1. Employing practices which avoid or minimize the need for fertilizers and pesticides.
 - 2. Prohibiting the use of 2.4-Dichlorophenoxyacetic Acid (2.4-D), herbicide and organophosphates.
 - 3. Composting/recycling all yard waste.
- B. The Lessor shall use landscaping products with recycled content as required by EPA.
- C. If the Lessor satisfies performance of this Lease by new construction, and where conditions permit, the site shall be landscaped with plants that are native or of low water use and are non-invasive to the area.
- D. Lessor should design landscape to survive a drought with reclaimed water whenever possible. Lessor shall maintain and design landscape to:
 - 1. Protect high priority landscape elements, such as trees.
 - 2. Protect all slopes from erosion.
 - 3. Convert conventional spray heads or rotors to drip and/or low-precipitation rate nozzles.
 - 4. Minimum three-inch layer of mulch applied on all exposed soil surfaces or planting
- E. During a declared drought, Lessor shall water low-priority landscapes only to the extent required to control dust and erosion. Trees in lawn areas that provide shade to buildings are high priority. Lessor shall add drip irrigation around the drip line of the tree, or water slowly and deeply with a trickling hose. Lawns should not be fertilized.
- F. Installation of irrigation sub-meters, flow meters, master valves and smart irrigation controllers are recommended. Overhead irrigation shall be scheduled between 8:00 p.m. and 10:00 a.m.

2.12 PLUMBING

- A. Lessor shall furnish and install plumbing fixtures in quantity and type as shown in Exhibit "A" and as required by code. Where State occupies multiple floors, Lessor shall provide accessible toilet rooms on each floor. Lessor shall provide one or more drinking fountains within close proximity to office quarters or as indicated on plan. Drinking fountains shall be CBC/ADA access compliant.
- B. For new installations and whenever plumbing fixtures are being replaced (replacement per floor is required prior to Lease commencement in all instances of nonconformance where the State occupies the full floor):
 - 1. Water closets must conform to U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) WaterSense, or fixtures with equivalent flush volumes must be utilized.
 - 2. Urinals must conform to EPA WaterSense, or fixtures with equivalent flush volumes must be utilized. Waterless urinals are acceptable.

- 3. Faucets must conform to EPA WaterSense, or fixtures with equivalent flow rates must be utilized.
- C. Lessor shall provide hot and cold water at each lavatory and sink. Domestic water heaters shall be located not more than 25 feet from furthest point of use unless a hot water recirculation or other temperature maintenance system is provided. Water heaters shall initially deliver water at 110° F.
- D. Where new toilet rooms, locker rooms with showers and shower rooms are provided and where shown on plans, Lessor shall provide floor drains.
- E. Domestic water supply systems shall be constructed with copper piping and tubing. Soldered connections on water supply lines shall use ASTM B 32, Tin Antimony solder. Lead solder is not permitted.

2.13 HEATING, VENTILATING AND AIR CONDITIONING

- A. Lessor shall provide a climate control system consisting of a fully automatic heating, ventilating, and air conditioning system capable of providing conditioned air continuously during occupied hours to the premises.
 - 1. The HVAC system shall be designed and capable of maintaining the following temperatures in all occupied areas:

<u>Design Criteria</u> <u>Operating Criteria</u> Winter: 76° F Winter: 68° F Summer: 72° F Summer: 78° F

- B. Lessor shall provide and install thermostats with automatic changeover from heating to cooling. Thermostats shall have dead-band with adjustable range where no heating or cooling is activated. The temperature range of the thermostats shall be minimum 55° F to 85° F. Thermostats shall be cleaned, calibrated, and initially adjusted to 68° F maximum for heating and 78° F minimum for cooling. Thermostats shall be located within each zone. In multi-tenant buildings, thermostats shall not be shared with other building tenants.
- C. Lessor shall furnish and install lockable, tamperproof covers to all thermostats within the leased premises.
- D. Lessor shall furnish and install a dedicated air conditioning system with separate thermostats for the computer room, telecommunication room, server room, and other similar spaces. The system shall be capable of providing conditioned air 24 hours per day, seven days a week. The operating temperature shall comply with the telecommunication equipment manufacturer specifications.
- E. Lessor shall submit detailed heating and cooling calculations, Title 24 compliance information, equipment selection data, and "as-built" mechanical drawings to DGS upon request.
- F. The cooling load for conference rooms, quiet rooms, hearing rooms, public lobbies, waiting rooms, and employee break rooms shall be based on occupancy of 15 square feet per person. Cooling load for all other areas shall be based on occupancy of 100 square feet per person.
- G. Systems shall be zoned for each building exposure and for interior zones where appropriate. Each zone shall be of a size and shape to ensure even air distribution and temperature control throughout the leased premises. Each conference room, quiet room, hearing room, public lobby, waiting room, and employee break room shall be zoned separately.
- H. In multi-tenant buildings, HVAC zones shall not be shared with other building tenants.
- I. All fan systems supplying 2,000 cfm and above shall be equipped with an economizer system that will use outdoor air up to 100 percent of fan capacity for cooling of the premises. Operation of the economizer cycle shall be controlled by outside dry bulb air temperature.

- J. All lunch rooms and break rooms with microwave ovens or other food-heating appliances shall include a general exhaust fan.
- K. Toilet rooms shall be provided with a mechanical exhaust system providing a minimum of 15 air changes per hour. Replacement air shall be supplied directly or indirectly from the building system. Individual supply ducts or sound-lined transfer ducts are acceptable. Each exhaust fan shall be interlocked with the associated HVAC unit supply fan serving the room. Exhaust air shall be ducted to the building exterior.
- L. Ductwork construction and installation shall conform to the appropriate Sheet Metal and Air Conditioning Contractors' National Association, Inc. (SMACNA) low-velocity or high-velocity duct construction standards. Ductwork shall be concealed or aesthetically compatible with the architectural design of the interior space. Individual supply and return air outlets and ductwork shall be provided in each enclosed area. Undercutting of doors, door grilles, or jumper ducts is not acceptable. Return air shall be conducted through registers connected to ductwork or plenum above ceilings, except as otherwise approved by the State.
- M. Air distribution system shall be equipped with air volume controls and shall be capable of draftless operation at an acceptable noise level while handling the design flow of air. The acceptable noise level shall comply with ASHRAE Handbook HVAC Applications.
- N. The complete HVAC system shall be checked, adjusted, and balanced. The air balance report shall be submitted to the State upon project completion.
- O. Lessor shall provide vibration isolation supports for all mechanical equipment, piping, and ductwork to prevent transmission of vibration to building structure.
- P. Where the heating design of outdoor temperature is below 35° F, Lessor shall provide one winter night setback thermostat for each HVAC system. The thermostat shall cycle the heating system to maintain 55° F.
- Q. Lessor shall provide automatic-control time clocks (7-day-programmable) or energy management systems (microprocessors) to allow the shutoff and startup of the HVAC equipment according to the State's occupancy schedule. State shall determine maximum daily hours of operation. Lessor shall provide one-hour bypass timers for each HVAC system for after-hours operation.
- R. Indirect evaporative cooling, desiccant dehumidification, and passive solar design measures are acceptable when approved by DGS.

2.14 ENERGY AND ELECTRICAL

- A. Energy efficiency and conservation
 - 1. Reporting Requirement Where the State is the sole tenant:
- B. General electrical requirements:
 - Lessor shall provide electrical engineering and installation of all transformers, main switchboard, subpanels, branch circuits, wiring devices, electrical switching, energy management systems, lighting, receptacles, and control equipment for HVAC systems.
 - 2. Service and metering equipment shall be in accordance with utility company requirements. An Electrical Arc-Flash Hazard Analysis and Short-Circuit and Protective Device Coordination Study shall be performed based on the available fault current from the utility system and contribution from the facilities' motors. Electrical equipment warning labels shall be provided based upon the available arc hazard energy at each piece of electrical equipment. Labels shall comply with the requirements of the California Electrical Code and NFPA 70E.
 - 3. Where electrical service panels are installed to provide service to State premises, Lessor shall provide and install panels with a minimum of 20 percent more circuit capacity than the Lessor's calculated load total.

- 4. The electrical panels serving the State's premises shall be accessible from the building core or from within the State's quarters. The location of the panels shall be coordinated and approved by DGS prior to installation.
- 5. All appliances and all energy-consuming devices shall be Energy Star certified by the U.S. EPA.

C. Power requirements:

- 1. Duplex convenience outlets shall be 20A, 125V, three-wire grounding type provided in quantities indicated on the Exhibit "A." Lessor shall provide a minimum of two convenience outlets in each private office.
- 2. Electrical/data/telephone outlet heights:
 - a) Existing receptacles may remain at 12" above finished floor. New receptacles shall be installed at 15" above finished floor or as noted on plans.
- 3. Lessor shall furnish and install all special use outlets, dedicated circuits, and isolated ground convenience outlets for copy machines, electronic communications equipment, and where noted on plan.
 - a) Dedicated circuits shall have individual ungrounded circuit conductors from each device to panel board circuit breaker and individual grounded circuit conductors from each device to the neutral bus located in the panel board. Equipment grounding conductors shall be connected to the grounding electrode system through a ground bus located in the panel board.

D. General lighting requirements:

- 1. Lighting design guidelines:
 - a) Lighting shall comply with the design guidelines of the current edition of the IESNA Lighting Handbook.
- 2. Where existing light fixtures are reused, Lessor shall modify fixtures as necessary to comply with all seismic guidelines. Lessor shall thoroughly clean fixture housings, lamps, and fixture lenses. All lenses shall be free of damage and discoloration. There shall be no visual discrepancy between existing lamp color temperature and new lamp color temperature in each enclosed space. Lessor shall replace incandescent lamp fixtures with new high efficiency lamp fixtures where applicable.
- 3. Premises shall have sufficient light fixtures properly spaced and be capable of providing the recommended levels of illumination indicated in the following table.
 - a) Minimum lighting levels:

AREA:	FOOTCANDLES:
Work surfaces (includes task lighting)	40
Work area ambient lighting	40
Telecommunications rooms and closets	30
Special purpose area(s)	30
Repair garage	50
Hallways, aisles, corridors	25
Conference/meeting rooms	40
Incandescent lighting	10 - 30
Drafting areas	40
High density filing areas	40
Document processing area/room	30
Circulation space around work areas	30
Building entries	25
Restrooms	40
Waiting and lounge areas	15
Coffee counters	30
Lunch rooms/break rooms	30
Warehouse	10

4. Minimum requirements for new or replacement linear fluorescent lighting systems:

- a) Minimum Color Rendering Index (CRI) of 70
- b) Option of common Color Temperature lamps (CCT) (3000° K through 4100° K)
- c) Minimum power factor of 90 percent
- d) Minimum system efficacy of 90 lumens per watt
- e) High frequency electronic ballast
- f) Maximum Total Harmonic Distortion (THD) of 20 percent
- g) Minimum lamp life of 20,000 hours
- 5. Minimum requirements for compact fluorescent lighting systems:
 - a) Minimum Color Rendering Index (CRI) of 75 percent
 - b) Option of common Color Temperature lamps (CCT) (2700° K through 4100° K)
 - c) Minimum power factor of 90 percent
 - d) Minimum system efficacy of 60 lumens per watt
 - e) Electronic ballast
 - f) Maximum Total Harmonic Distortion (THD) of 20 percent
 - g) Minimum lamp life of 10,000 hours
- 6. Minimum requirements for LED lighting systems
 - a) Minimum Color Rendering Index (CRI) of 80
 - b) Option of common Color Temperature lamps (CCT) (3000° K through 4100° K)
 - c) Minimum power factor of 90 percent
 - d) Minimum system efficacy of 90 lumens per watt
 - e) Internal LED Driver
 - f) Lamps capable of being dimmed from 100 percent to 0 percent of maximum lighting output
 - g) Minimum lamp life of 50,000 hours
- 7. Pairs of one-lamp or three-lamp recessed fluorescent luminaries and continuous mounted fluorescents that are (1) on the same switch control, (2) in the same area, (3) within 10 feet of each other in accessible ceiling spaces; and (4) do not use electronic ballasts, shall be tandem wired and shall not use single lamp ballasts.
- 8. Where required, lighting panel switches, including exterior lighting, shall have a two-schedule, programmable, seven-day with holiday setting, battery-backup time clock. Time clock operation shall have manual override with a two-hour bypass. Override shall be accessible to the tenant.
- 9. Where exterior illumination is required, Lessor shall provide and install exterior solid-state luminaires that are designed for and exclusively use LED lamp technology. Luminaires shall include integrated controls and the required Backlight, Uplight, and Glare (BUG) ratings based on the Lighting Zone the luminaires are in for accent light and outdoor building security lighting. All building entrances shall be illuminated.
- E. Communication equipment requirements:
 - 1. Lessor shall provide and install all conduits and telephone service cabling from the building's main point of entry to the tenant agency's Telecommunication closet.
 - 2. Lessor shall furnish and install telephone terminal backboard. Backboard shall be 4' x 8' x 3/4" thick, fire-retardant plywood, and painted per code to match adjacent surfaces.
 - 3. Lessor shall furnish and install termination blocks, cable management hardware, and terminate and label all cables at both ends.
 - 4. Lessor shall provide and install all components as required by the telephone service provider's requirements.
 - 5. Unless otherwise noted, Lessor shall furnish and install a complete structured cabling system from the tenant agency's telecommunication closet to the final point of termination. Lessor shall provide all components such as (but not limited to):

- cabling, cable labels, cable trays, cable management hardware, patch panels, cross connects, patch cords, faceplate, jacks, wall outlets and MSF workstation outlets, as necessary or required for a complete and operational system.
- 6. Lessor shall provide and install all conduit and outlet boxes with pull-wire.
- 7. The system shall be tested pursuant to and meet ANSI/TIA/EIA standards.
- 8. BICSI Certified cabling installers shall perform all work, and shall comply with all ANSI/TIA/EIA cabling standards.
- 9. The system shall comply with the requirements of the tenant agency's specifications.
- 10. The State shall not be required to remove any communication equipment and/or cabling described herein either during the lease term or upon termination of this lease.

2.15 PARKING AND PAVING

- A. Parking areas and access from the public way shall be paved. Each parking stall shall have individual, unobstructed access. All stalls shall be marked with 4" wide painted stripes using white traffic-grade paint. Traffic areas shall have appropriate painted directional arrows and any other graphics noted on Exhibit "A." Lessor shall furnish and install appropriate signage as required by local jurisdiction.
 - 1. In the event that the State requests exclusive and/or secure parking all spaces shall be full size parking stalls.
- B. Pavement at existing parking areas shall be free of holes, patches, divots or badly weathered surface conditions. If new material is used, the existing asphalt shall be ground and used for fill in the parking area.

DIVISION 3 - SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Exhibit B applies to Project 11506 & Project 14162. No changes have been made to Exhibit B and no tenant improvements have been requested by the Agency.

The following Special Provisions supplement the requirements specified in Divisions 1 and 2. Where Division 3 requirements conflict with Divisions 1 and 2, Division 3 supersedes those requirements.

There are NO SPECIAL PROVISIONS for this Project.

DIVISION 4 – TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS

Exhibit B applies to Project 11506 & Project 14162. No changes have been made to Exhibit B and no tenant improvements have been requested by the Agency.

The following Technical Requirements supplement the requirements specified in Divisions 1 and 2. Where Division 4 requirements conflict with Divisions 1 and 2; Division 4 supersedes those requirements.

There are NO TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS for this Project.



EXHIBIT 'C' – ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

PROJECT: Office Headquarters PROJECT NO.: 14162

AGENCY: California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection LEASE NO.: 7296-001

LOCATION: 474 E. Valley Street DATE: September 18, 2024

Willits, CA 95490

Table of Contents

DIVIS	ION 1 – AUTHORITY AND POLICY REQUIREMENTS	2
1.1	GENERAL	
1.2	STATE FIRE MARSHAL AUTHORITY	2
1.3	ACCESS COMPLIANCE AUTHORITY	2
אועום	SION 2 – STATE FIRE MARSHAL PROCEDURE	1
2.1	CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS	
2.2	PLAN REVIEW AND APPROVAL	4
2.3	CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION	
פועום	SION 3 – CBC/ADA ACCESS COMPLIANCE PROCEDURE	6
3.1	GENERAL	6
3.2	FEE REQUIREMENT	6
3.3	DETERMINATION OF FACILITY GROUP	6
3.4	GROUP I FACILITY PROCEDURE	
3.5	GROUP II FACILITY PROCEDURE	7
DIVIS	SION 4 – REFERENCE FORMS	9
4.1	FORM C	
4.2	FORM D	
4.3	ACCESS COMPLIANCE CALCULATION; FORM E	11
4.4	DVBE PROGRAM CERTIFICATION SHEET; FORM F	
4.5	STATE LEASED BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES VERIFIED REPORT; FORM G	13

PLANNER: Savita Sachdeva PHONE: 279.799.4093

EMAIL: Savita.Sachdeva@dgs.ca.gov

Confirmation Statement

I/we have read this Exhibit 'C' Administrative Requirements and understand it is incorporated into, and is part of, this lease. I/we have acknowledged each and every page by placing my/our initials on this cover sheet.

Initiale	

EXHIBIT C – ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS DIVISION 1 – AUTHORITY AND POLICY REQUIREMENTS

DIVISION 1 – AUTHORITY AND POLICY REQUIREMENTS

Exhibit C applies to Project 11506 & Project 14162. No tenant improvements have been requested by the Agency.

1.1 GENERAL

- A. The State of California and its governing agencies have mandated that the Department of General Services (DGS), Real Estate Services Division (RESD) adhere to all regulations, policies and state statutes for all state agencies leasing private sector building space.
- B. This Exhibit 'C' document is a binding part of the lease document and shall function with Exhibits 'A' and 'B'.
- C. The forms contained in Division 4 are for the Lessor's reference. A separate Lessor's forms packet will be provided by RESD for the Lessor's use. The forms contained in the "Lessor's Packet" are to be used by the Lessor to accomplish the processes required by this document.
- D. Federal Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and California Building Code (Title 24) accessibility requirements are combined and noted hereafter as CBC/ADA.
- E. Abbreviations: State Fire Marshal (SFM); Division of the State Architect (DSA); Real Estate Services Division (RESD).

1.2 STATE FIRE MARSHAL AUTHORITY

- A. Section 13108 of the California State Health and Safety Code gives the State Fire Marshal (SFM) authority for enforcement of fire protection regulations for State owned and State occupied leased buildings or premises. This authority encompasses both plan review and construction inspections of all leased facilities.
- B. If at any time during the Design, Construction Document Review, or Construction Inspection processes, a conflict arises between the State and local authorities, the Lessor/architect will compile all pertinent information and present the situation through the RESD Space Planner to the SFM. The SFM has final authority in the determination of compliance and will take the lead in the resolution of problems or suitable interpretation of code.
- C. For projects with no alterations (a change, addition or modification in construction, change in occupancy or use, or repair to an existing building or facility. Including, but not limited to remodeling, renovation, rehabilitation, reconstruction, rearrangement in the plan configuration of walls and full-height partitions), the Lessor is not required to submit construction documents to the SFM.
- D. Per CBC 111.1: No building or structure shall be used or occupied until the building official has issued a certificate of occupancy.

1.3 ACCESS COMPLIANCE AUTHORITY

- A. California law incorporates the Americans with Disabilities Act requirements. California Government Code provides that buildings shall be made accessible to, and usable by, persons with disabilities, whether they are leased, rented, contracted, sublet, or hired by any municipal, county, or State divisions of government, or special district. California Building Standards Code defines that all State facilities shall meet the federal Architectural Barriers Acts.
- B. These statutes, in addition to the California Building Code, Title 24, generate the need for a standard process to ensure access compliance with respect to State leased facilities.
- C. The Division of the State Architect (DSA) is charged with the responsibility of ensuring compliance with the above standards.

EXHIBIT C – ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS DIVISION 1 – AUTHORITY AND POLICY REQUIREMENTS

- D. If at any time during the Design, Construction Document Review, or Construction Inspection processes, a conflict arises between the State and local authorities, the Lessor/architect will compile all pertinent information and present the situation to the RESD Space Planner.
- E. The DSA has delegated a component of the access compliance responsibility to RESD for leased facilities. Conforming to DSA delegation, RESD is requiring the Lessor to ensure compliance by utilizing one of the two procedures defined in this document. Refer to Division 3 (below) for specific requirements and procedures.
- F. Public right- of- way access is required for all State leased facilities. If the existing conditions do not meet the required codes and regulations, the design professional (Lessor's architect) must demonstrate and document a diligent effort to request that the authority (having control) over the public right- of- way, makes the necessary modifications to secure right-of-way access. All correspondence shall be documented and provided to the RESD Space Planner for the project file.

End of Authority and Policy Requirements

EXHIBIT C – ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS DIVISION 2 – STATE FIRE MARSHAL PROCEDURE

DIVISION 2 – STATE FIRE MARSHAL PROCEDURE

Exhibit C applies to Project 11506 & Project 14162. No tenant improvements have been requested by the Agency.

2.1 CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

A. The Exhibit 'A' Plan or the Exhibit 'A' FDP are design development guidelines only. Lessor shall provide all required construction documents and calculations necessary to obtain a building permit from the local Building Department and to construct the improvements as indicated. The use of Exhibit 'A' Plan in lieu of construction documents is not acceptable to the State.

2.2 PLAN REVIEW AND APPROVAL

- A. The Lessor's architect is required to submit the construction documents to the SFM for plan review and approval <u>prior to construction</u>. Lessor's architect shall use the Sample SFM Plan submittal checklist Triage List (Form B) in development of construction documents. All specific technical elements of the construction such as fire alarm and smoke detection systems, fire sprinklers, construction details of fire assemblies, etc. shall be included with the construction documents. For projects with no alterations, the Lessor is not required to submit construction documents to the SFM.
- B. The Lessor's architect is responsible for submitting construction drawings to the SFM's office for permit review and approval. The SFM GOVmotus website must be used for all plan review submittals, plan check responses and inspection requests throughout the course of the project, all future alterations during the term of the lease will require a new/separate username and password.
- C. The Lessor's architect shall complete the Permit application form and plan submittal checklist online. The Lessor's architect shall also submit hardcopies of all permit documents either by mail or in person to the SFM's office in Sacramento. There is no fee for the Lessor associated with the SFM review process. Other pertinent information can be found on the SFM web site at: https://calfire.govmotus.org
- D. The construction documents will be returned to the address shown under Applicant Information, on the Permit Application and will be accompanied by either a **SFM Plan Review Approval** or a **SFM Plan Review Transmittal** with a list of deficiencies. Upon completion of plan review, the Lessor/architect shall provide a copy of the SFM Plan Review Approval letter to the RESD Space Planner.

2.3 CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION

- A. The regional SFM office will inspect and approve the construction in the State leased building. There are two fire life safety regions; North and South. The final SFM approved construction documents will include all inspection contact information and will be emailed via the GOVmotus website to the Lessor's representative. To request a SFM inspection for your site; provide a minimum of 24 to 48 hour notice prior to the inspection date. The inspections must be requested on the GOVmotus website. The Lessor, architect, or contractor shall be responsible for logging into the GOVmotus website and requesting inspections.
- B. After completion of each successive SFM construction inspection, any deficiencies shall be recorded on the SFM **Fire Safety Correction Notice** by the SFM's assigned Deputy and emailed to the Lessor by the SFM. A copy of the inspection notice will be immediately available on the GOVmotus website. This form is to be signed by a Lessor's representative on site. Final approval by the Deputy SFM is recorded on this document and a **SFM Certificate of Occupancy** is then issued. The Lessor or Lessors contractor shall send a copy to the RESD Space Planner.

EXHIBIT C – ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS DIVISION 2 – STATE FIRE MARSHAL PROCEDURE

End of SFM Process

EXHIBIT C – ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS DIVISION 3 – CBC/ADA ACCESS COMPLIANCE PROCEDURE

DIVISION 3 – CBC/ADA ACCESS COMPLIANCE PROCEDURE

Exhibit C applies to Project 11506 & Project 14162. No tenant improvements have been requested by the Agency.

3.1 GENERAL

A. To comply with the accessibility requirements and ensure that the facility has complied with all accessibility codes and regulations, the Lessor is required to complete one of the two processes defined below. In each case the RESD Space Planner will remain the primary contact. The facilities are categorized according to size as either Group I or Group II projects. Each category has specific requirements as defined. Group I projects are submitted to RESD and Group II facilities are submitted to DSA for plan review and approval. The Lessor is required to follow the procedure of the applicable process and is responsible for the associated costs.

3.2 FEE REQUIREMENT

A. The Lessor is required to submit the project fee to RESD for Group I or directly to the <u>DSA regional office</u> for Group II facilities. The RESD Space Planner will calculate the required fee using the **CBC/ADA Access Compliance Fee Calculation Form E** (attached) and include this in the Exhibit C lease document.

3.3 DETERMINATION OF FACILITY GROUP

A. The group is determined by the category and the size of the State's net usable leased area. The respective administrative process is defined in the following Sections 3.4 (Group I) and 3.5 (Group II). The Group Types are defined below:

GROUP I:

Building Type:	Net Usable Square Footage:
Existing Office Buildings	Less than 100,000 square feet
Existing Warehouse Buildings	Less than 500,000 square feet
Any Building to be Constructed	Less than 30,000 square feet

GROUP II:

Building Type:	Net Usable Square Footage:
Existing Office Buildings with Alterations	100,000 sq. ft. or greater
Existing Warehouse Buildings with Alterations	500,000 sq. ft. or greater
Any Building to be Constructed	30,000 sq. ft. or greater

<u>Note:</u> Certain Group I projects, at the discretion of the State, may be determined compatible with Group II process regardless of the building size. The RESD Space Planner shall inform the Lessor which process applies to this particular project during lease negotiations.

3.4 GROUP I FACILITY PROCEDURE

For Group I facilities the Lessor's architect is required to complete the requirements outlined in paragraphs A through E below:

- A. Accessibility Survey: The Lessor must have an accessibility survey completed prior to the finalization and approval of the construction documents. The survey must be completed using the DGS' Accessibility Checklist for State-Leased Buildings and Facilities. The following consultants are acceptable:
 - DSA certified accessibility consultants trained for Leased facilities or Certified Access Specialist (CASp)

https://www.apps2.dgs.ca.gov/DSA/casp/casp_certified_list.aspx

EXHIBIT C – ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS DIVISION 3 – CBC/ADA ACCESS COMPLIANCE PROCEDURE

- ICC Accessibility Inspector/Plans Examiner
 https://www.iccsafe.org/search-for-certified-professionals/
- 3. Architect licensed in the State of California.
- B. The consultant will survey the facility and site per CCR Title 24, California Building Code (CBC), and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). State agencies are public entities and shall comply with Title II of the ADA. Exceptions to the code for existing buildings are not permitted. Access compliance shall apply to exterior areas such as but not limited to path of travel to and from public transportation and public right-of-way. parking, passenger drop-off and loading zones, walks and sidewalks, curb ramps, ramps, and all stairs. Access compliance shall also apply to interior areas such as but not limited to entrances and exits. lobbies, building common areas, elevators, access lifts, doors and gates, access to and through all rooms and spaces, restrooms, signs and identification, counters, waiting, seating areas, assistive listening systems, telephones, drinking fountains, alarms, and horizontal/vertical access. Consultants will observe and record all deficiencies, as well as provide solutions needed to bring facility into compliance with sufficient detail to allow Lessor or his/her agent to develop a cost estimate for proposed barrier removal. Should all areas mentioned above not be fully constructed, consultants shall review the construction documents in addition to the physical evaluation.
- C. Fee Payment: The Lessor shall prepare a check payable to the Dept. of General Services, Real Estate Services Division. Lessor shall enclose a copy of the CBC/ADA Access Compliance Fee Calculation Form E (attached) as prepared by the RESD Space Planner, along with payment and mail to DGS, RESD (Include the project number on the check to RESD).
- D. Construction Documents: The Lessor's Architect will incorporate all items defined in the accessibility survey into the construction documents. The Lessor shall submit the completed drawings to RESD for review.
- E. Verified Report: Following the completion of construction, the Lessor's architect is responsible for verifying that the items outlined in the accessibility survey and incorporated into the construction documents have been completed. The Verified Report Form G (attached) shall be signed by the Lessor's architect. The architect shall forward the signed Verified Report to RESD Space Planner prior to the final inspection that will be performed by RESD. The project will not be accepted for occupancy prior to receipt of this document.

End of Group I Procedure

3.5 GROUP II FACILITY PROCEDURE

The Lessor is required to submit plans and specifications to the **Division of the State Architect (DSA)** for access compliance review and approval. Although the formal process for access compliance plan review and approval is processed through DSA, the DGS RESD Space Planner will continue as the project manager. The Lessor's architect shall inform RESD of the status of plan review/approval from DSA.

For Group II facilities the Lessor's architect is required to complete the requirements outlined in paragraphs A through E below:

Note: See Section 3.4.A (Group I Facility Procedure) for parameters of survey.

A. Construction Drawings and Specifications: The Lessor is required to retain an architect licensed in the State of California to design and develop plans and specifications in accordance with the lease exhibits and applicable codes and regulations. The Lessor's architect will incorporate all items defined in the accessibility survey into the construction documents. The architect is required to stamp and sign the construction documents.

EXHIBIT C – ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS DIVISION 3 – CBC/ADA ACCESS COMPLIANCE PROCEDURE

- B. Fee Payment: In accordance with the calculation of fees per the CBC/ADA Access **Compliance Fee Calculation** Form E (attached), the Lessor shall prepare a check payable to the Division of the State Architect. This check along with a copy of the CBC/ADA Access Compliance Fee Calculation Form E shall be forwarded directly to the appropriate regional DSA office in the submittal package.
- C. Submittal Package: The submittals shall be sent to the appropriate DSA regional office. The state is divided into four regions, San Francisco Bay Area, Sacramento, Los Angeles and San Diego. The DSA regional office that will review this project can be confirmed by calling DSA at (916) 445-8100. The submittal package must be complete before the DSA accepts the project for review. Proceed to the DSA website using the link below for instructions on this process: https://www.dgs.ca.gov/DSA/Services/Page-Content/Division-of-the-State-Architect-
 - Services-List/Start-Construction-Project-by-Submitting-Plans-for-Review
 - Upon receipt of the submittal package, a DSA application number is assigned to the project for tracking purposes. A preliminary review of your submittal is performed within a few days. Plan review is scheduled after DSA verifies that a complete submittal package has been received. The Lessor's architect shall verify the estimated time for this project review with DSA at submittal. The architect shall make the necessary adjustments to the overall project schedule accordingly.
- D. DSA Plan Approval: Once approval has been granted by DSA, the Lessor is required to construct the project in compliance with the plans, specifications and lease exhibits. The Lessor shall provide a copy of DSA's letter of approval to the RESD Space Planner. Construction shall not commence until this process has been completed.
- E. Verified Report: Following completion of construction, the Lessor's architect shall visit the site to verify that the building and site are in compliance with the DSA approved plans and specifications. The Verified Report Form G (attached) shall be completed and signed by the Lessor's architect. The architect shall forward the Verified Report to RESD Space Planner prior to the final construction inspection by RESD. The project will not be accepted for occupancy prior to receipt of this document.

End of Group II Procedure

8

DIVISION 4 – REFERENCE FORMS

Office of the State Fire Marshal Sample Plan Review Triage List

This form is provided for informational purposes only. For the complete triage list visit the website below. Information and forms may be obtained at Office of the State Fire Marshal, Fire and Life Safety Division - Plan Review Section osfm.fire.ca.gov

1. GENERAL	 Separated, non-separated, accessory use
Durandela a communista mismo mandano amplication	 Allowable area
 Provide a complete plan review application 	 ○ Area increase
Submit plans sufficient size	○ Height increase
Provide site address	○ Fire Sprinklers (Type, Full, Partial)
Provide name of owner and occupant	
Identify if new construction or T.I.	o Fire Alarm (Type)
Identify if new or existing tenant space	o Other Fire Protection System (Type)
☐ Identify if deferred submittal	 Smoke Control System (Y/N)
☐ CSFM file number must be on title sheet	 Occupant load for entire building and each floor
☐ Slip sheets shall be bound to set	 Year building was constructed
	 High Fire Hazard Severity Zone (Y/N)
	 Seismic Joints and locations (Y/N)
☐ Wet stamp and sign sheets	 Emergency Responder Radio Coverage (Y/N)
☐ Electronic signature approval required	Identify occupancy groups/uses on floor plans
□ Scope of Work	Identify adjacent buildings on the site
Provide a Key Plan coordinated to each sheet	☐ Identify fire separation distances
Provide a North orientated Site Map	☐ Identify building allowable area increases
 Orientate all sheets to North 	☐ Justify frontage allowances
Identify deferred submittals	☐ Sprinkler height/area increase cannot be
 Provide adopted code cycle listings and 	combined
standards	
☐ Provide a legible scale, typically 1/8"	Identify types and materials of all construction Provide well be sended.
☐ Provide approved reference	Provide wall legends
	o Fire rated assemblies
2. ACCESS AND WATER SUPPLY	 Scan listed assemblies to plans
	□ Penetration protection
Provide Local Fire Authority Approval Letter	 Scan listed fire stopping systems to plans
☐ Fire Department Access	Classification of roof covering
Fire Department Connection	Details for opening protection
☐ Fire Hydrants	 Door schedule
Fire Alarm Annunciator	Window schedule
□ Fire Alarm Control Panel	Louver schedule
☐ Knox Box/Key Switch	Listed smoke containment system
□ Emergency Responder Radio Coverage	Interior finish smoke and flame spread
☐ Elevator gurney accommodation	·
☐ Provide a complete fire access plan	4. EXITING
□ Provide 6 mo. current site fire flow information	☐ Paths of travel to a public way
3. NONSTRUCTURAL PROVISIONS	☐ All occupancies/uses on floor plans
	☐ Correct occupant load factors (gross, net)
Building Analysis (include the following):	☐ Cumulative loads (lobbies, corridors, stairs, etc.)
 Occupancy groups and varied uses 	☐ Furniture plan
 Building construction type 	Egress capacity (width and number)
 Number of stories 	Door swing
 Actual building height 	Door hardware
 Building area in square feet 	Delayed egress design
 Area of project in square feet 	Card readers/ access control

9

		Emergency lighting and photometric Exit signs Exit enclosures (vertical and horizontal)		C	Model number and locations of nozzles Location, temperature and model of detectors Location and size of extinguishing agent
		Exit discharge			Location of manual means of activation
		Areas of refuge & Safe dispersal areas		C	 Location and identity of gas and electric shutoffs Interconnection to building fire alarm system
5.	FIF	RE PROTECTION SYSTEMS		C	Location of a Class K fire extinguisher
•		TIRE ALARM	7.	EL	ECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATIONS
		Provide highlighted set of data sheets			
		Provide cut sheets for all components			Identify required signage, posts, wheel stops
		Provide current CSFM listings			Identify electrical panel bonding and grounding Provide location of disconnect
		Provide a paguage of apprehim Identify			Charging equipment for vehicles requiring
		Provide a sequence of operation Identify		_	ventilation
		approved monitoring station Identify fire alarm and egress-control devices			Identify means of indoor mechanical ventilation
		Demonstrate compliance for egress-control			Provide details for underground runs (Trench
	_	systems			depths, conduit/conductor sizes)
		Provide ceiling configuration, surface, and height			•
		Provide/correct voltage drop calculations for	8.	HA	AZARDOUS MATERIALS
		devices			Inventory summary with hazard class and totals
		Provide/correct riser diagram			Safety Data Sheets
		Provide/correct standby battery calculations			Floor plans
		Demonstrate audible visual notification coverage Demonstrate manual fire alarm box coverage			Occupancy classifications
		Demonstrate manual me alami box coverage			Control areas
•		TIRE SPRINKLERS			Fire resistive construction
		Provide all OSFM shop drawing notes			Hazardous materials warning signs
		Submittal shall comply with OSFM design			No smoking signs Hazardous materials alarm devices
	_	guideline			Hazardous materials cabinets Fume hoods and
		Identify system type (wet, dry, pre-action, etc.)		_	enclosures
		Provide ceiling configuration, surface, and height			Equipment utilizing hazardous materials
	П	Provide hydraulic calculations			Spill control/secondary containment
	_	Provide full height cross sections/ceiling			Standby/emergency power
		construction	_		
		Identify area protected by each system for each	9.	НІ	GH PILE STORAGE
		floor			Letter of intent signed by authorized department
		Identify area limitations for hazard classifications			head
		Correct notes/design to reflect CA amendments			HPS analysis prepared by an FPE
		Identify miscellaneous storage condition			Scaled site plan (fire lanes, hydrants, FDC's,
6.	нс	OOD AND DUCT EQUIPMENT/SYSTEMS			risers) Scaled floor plan (HPS area, racks, access doors)
٥.					Fire sprinkler design density
		Scaled plan of area and equipment			Aisle dimensions
		Dimensions of hoods, ducts, and appliances			Dimensions and location of flue spaces
		Equipment list for system, devices and materials Manufacturer's installation instructions			Location of different commodity classes
		Cut sheets and compliance with UL 300			Location of banded/encapsulated storage
	_	Standard			Location and type of building columns
		Isometric drawing of piping and components			Fire resistive construction
	0	Type, size and length of piping			Occupancy classification of adjacent tenants
		Size and number of fittings			Location and design of smoke vent

FORM C 4.1

(NOT USED)

4.2 FORM D

(NOT USED)

4.3 ACCESS COMPLIANCE CALCULATION; FORM E

RELPS Planner:	Savita Sachdeva	Date:	August 14, 2024
Agency:	California Department o	f Forestry and Fire Protection	١
Address:	Willits, CA 95490		
Project Number:	14162 Project Name:	CDF Willits 14162	

For GROUP I Facilities Send to: For Group II Facilities Send to: DSA Regional Office

Dept. of General Services

See DSA website for office locations: https://www.dgs.ca.gov/DSA/contact Real Estate Services Division Asset Management Branch

707 3rd Street, Suite 5-305 West Sacramento, CA 95605

Project Type		Project Size		Project Value	
		(net usable s.f.)		(PV)	
	Existing Warehouse Buildings		\$20/sf	\$ -	
	Existing Office Buildings		\$50/sf	\$ -	
	New Construction		\$150/sf	\$ -	

GROUP I (Under \$5,000,000)	Proje	ct Value	Multiplier		Fee
PV X 0.2% of 1st \$500,000 =	\$	-	0.002	\$	-
Remainder of PV x 0.1% =	\$	-	0.001	\$	-
Remainder between 2M and 5M x .01%	\$	-	0.0001	\$	-
Calculated total =				\$	_
x 10% (QA or \$200 Minimum) = Total Fee					-

GROUP II (Over \$5,000,000)	Proje	ct Value	Multiplier	Fee
PV x 0.5% of 1st \$500,000	\$	-	0.005	\$ -
PV between 500,000 and 2M x .25%	\$	-	0.0025	\$ -
PV over 2M x .1%	\$	_	0.001	\$ _
Calculated total =				\$ _
Total Fee				\$ _

Total Lessor Fee Obligation:	\$	-
------------------------------	----	---

4.4 DVBE PROGRAM CERTIFICATION SHEET; FORM F

CALIFORNIA DISABLED VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM CERTIFICATION SHEET

Lessor must complete and sign to certify if DVBE Participation was or was not obtained

LEASE AMOUNI/DVBE	Project No.:	14162	
I hereby certify that the L	ease Contract Amount, as	defined below, is in the amount of	
\$	of which \$	was awarded to a ce	rtified DVBE
firm resulting in	% DVBE participat	tion. I understand that the Lease Co	ontract
Amount is the total dollar	figure against which the D	VBE participation will be evaluated	
Lessor:		_ Date:	
Lessor's Signature:		_ Printed Name:	

DEFINITION: Lease contract amount is the total amount of lease costs expended by the Lessor over the firm term of the lease which are attributable to expenditures by the lessor to make the leased property sufficient for state occupancy. This typically includes, but is not necessarily limited to, tenant improvements, extraordinary maintenance, and janitorial services specified in the lease. In the case of a build-to-suit facility, the total of the construction and off-site development costs, as well as architectural and engineering costs, would be included.

4.5 STATE LEASED BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES VERIFIED REPORT; FORM G

The Architect having general responsible charge of the work of construction on the plans and specifications, is responsible for the submission of this report to the Department of General Services / Real Estate Services Division (DGS/RESD) Planner prior to the state tenant taking occupancy.

RESD Project					RESD Proje	ct # 141	62
Info:	Protection Project Type (Seepe of Work): New Space, 48				Date: August 14, 2024		
	Project Type (Scope of Work): New Space 48 RESD Planner: Savita Sachdeva					gust 14, 20 279.799.40	
	RESD Flatilier. Savita Sacrideva			riione.	219.199.40	93	
Facility Info:	Building Name:				Hours of Operation:		
	Address:				Suite:		
	City:				Zip: 95490		
	Lessor Contact:				Phone:		
Contractor: Company Name:				License #: Phone:			
This report inclu	udes all cons	truction work t	hrough the date of:	month	da da	y ye	ear
Exterior		% Compliant		terior Work		% Complia	
Parking & Accessible Stalls				Accessible Ma	in Entrance		
Walks & Sidewalks			Doors & Gates				
Curb Ramps			Information / Reception Counter				
	Stairways		Elevators / Ramps / Lifts				
	s & Landings		Sanitary Facilities / Sinks / Drinking Fountains				
Accessible M			Stairwells / Exits				
Wayfinding & Signage			Conference / Meeting / Assembly Rooms				
				Wayfinding	g & Signage		
			Fire Alarms				
Total Project Percer							
* All items req or Mitigation			nt unless Hardship	approved by A	Authorized .	Jurisdictio	n
List work and p	ercentage to	be completed	(attach additional pa	ages as necess	ary):		
		7		_			
all of the above during the perio	statements and covered by	are true, and the the true, and the the true, and the true the true true true true true true true tru	ve read the above re nat I know of my ow s been performed a e duly approved pla	n personal know nd materials use	ledge that the day and install	e work ed, in every	
Architect:	Signature:				Date:		
	Name:				Architect #	:	
Company		Firm:			Phone:		
	Address:				- 1		
Submit comple	ted forms to t	he location inc	dicated below:				
Department of Real Estate Se Attn: Savita Sa 707 3 rd Street, West Sacrame	General Serv rvices Divisio chdeva Suite 5-305	ices n					